

CITY OF HAMILTON

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Contract Number: C11-39-15

Zoom Camera Inspection of Manholes and Sewers

Closes: 3:00 pm, Hamilton time Wednesday, September 2, 2015

Procurement Section Corporate Services Department

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Description</u>	Hardcopy <u>Page Colour</u>	Page <u>Number</u>
Submission Label	White	3 to 4
Communications Notice	White	5
Checklist	Neon	6
Request for Proposals Notice	White	7 to 9
Instructions to Proponents	Pink	10 to 70
Special Provisions	Blue	71 to 73
Proposal Submission Information	Ivory	74 to 81
Form of Proposal - (Step 1)	Yellow	82 to 86
Form of Proposal – Cost Proposal - (Step 2)	Purple	87 to 88
Terms of Reference	White	89 to 103
Appendix A – Sample Weekly Priority Flushing / Cleaning Report	White	104

Note: Online page colour: White

SUBMISSION LABEL Step 1 - Technical Proposal

IMPORTANT:

THIS SUBMISSION LABEL
IS TO BE USED FOR RETURNING
STEP 1 - TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY:

Legal Name of Proponent:		
Address:		

PROCUREMENT SECTION
City of Hamilton
Standard Life Building
9th Floor
120 King Street West
Hamilton, ON L8P 4V2

SUBMISSION LABEL Step 2 - Cost Proposal

IMPORTANT:

THIS SUBMISSION LABEL
IS TO BE USED FOR RETURNING
STEP 2 - COST PROPOSAL

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY:

Legal Name			
of Proponent:	 	 	
Address:			

PROCUREMENT SECTION
City of Hamilton
Standard Life Building
9th Floor
120 King Street West
Hamilton, ON L8P 4V2

COMMUNICATIONS NOTICE

All requests for information, instructions or clarifications must be set out in writing and directed to:

Daniela Buehner
Procurement Specialist
Procurement Section
Corporate Services Department
City of Hamilton
120 King Street West, 9th Floor
Hamilton, ON L8P 4V2
Email: daniela.buehner@hamilton.ca

All questions related to this Request for Proposals (RFP) or any clarification with respect to this RFP must be made no later than **three Business Days prior** to the Closing Time of this RFP in order that City staff may have sufficient time to respond. The City reserves the right to extend the deadline for questions if required regarding this RFP.

Written answers or clarifications to issues of substance shall be shared with all Proponents and issued as part of the RFP in the form of an Addendum. All Proponents are advised that any Addenda issued will only be posted on the following website: biddingo.com/hamilton

Proponents will only receive an email notification that an Addendum has been issued. It is the sole responsibility of each Proponent to check the website for any and all Addenda that have been issued for this Request for Proposals.

CHECKLIST OF REQUIRED SUBMITTALS WITH THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Contract Number: C11-39-15

Zoom Camera Inspection of Manholes and Sewers

The following checklist is not a complete list of Proposal requirements. It is the Proponent's responsibility to satisfy all requirements set out in this Request for Proposals.

Proponents **must** ensure that the mandatory requirements described below in this checklist and otherwise contained in this Request for Proposals, have been satisfied in their Proposal submission. **Failure to comply with these requirements may result in rejection of your Proposal.**

In a separate sealed package or envelope

Sten 1 - Technical Proposal

Olop	1 Toomhour Topocur				
	One originally signed and five identical photocopies of completed Form of Proposal - (Step 1) (yellow pages) and Technical Proposal.				
	Other required information as stated in the TABLE 1: Criteria for the Evaluation of Proposals.				
In a separate sealed package or envelope					
Step	2 - Cost Proposal				
	One original and one identical photocopies of completed Form of Proposal - Cost Proposal - (Step 2) (purple pages) and Cost Proposal submitted in a separate package or envelope.				



City of Hamilton Corporate Services Department Procurement Section Phone: 905 546 2773

Fax: 905 546 2327

Email: procurement@hamilton.ca

Daniela Buehner Procurement Specialist Email: daniela.buehner@hamilton.ca

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NOTICE

Contract Number: C11-39-15

Zoom Camera Inspection of Manholes and Sewers

Closing 3:00 pm, Hamilton time Wednesday, September 2, 2015

Sealed Proposals for the above noted Request for Proposals, addressed to the Procurement Manager, City of Hamilton, Procurement Section, Standard Life Building, 120 King Street West, 9th Floor, Suite 900, Hamilton, ON, L8P 4V2 will be received at **only** the Procurement Section on or before the date and time stated above.

1.0 SCOPE OF WORK

The City of Hamilton invites the submission of Proposals for zoom camera inspection of manholes and sewers throughout the City.

There are approximately 43,750 municipally owned manholes within the City required to be accessed over a five year period between the months of April and December of each year, dependent on weather and temperature conditions.

The Successful Proponent shall supply all equipment, labour, materials, reports, and data exchange services necessary to complete surveys and prepare reports as specified in this Request for Proposals.

2.0 CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

Proponents are advised of the following contract requirements for this Request for Proposals:

2.1 Proposal Security

Proposal security: Not required.

2.2 Performance and/or Labour and Material Payment Security

Performance security: Not required.

Labour and Material Payment Bond: Not required.

3.0 SITE MEETINGS

3.1 Mandatory Site Meeting

There is no mandatory site meeting.

3.2 Optional Site Meeting

There is no optional site meeting.

4.0 TO OBTAIN DOCUMENTS

A complete set of Request for Proposals documents will be available for viewing at the Procurement Section at the location stated above.

4.1 Online: biddingo.com/hamilton

Fee: \$32.65 non-refundable, tax included + applicable Biddingo fees

4.2 Hardcopy (in person):

Fee: \$48.95 non-refundable, tax included

Method: cash, debit, credit card, money order, bank draft or company

cheque made payable to the City of Hamilton. Personal cheques

must be certified.

Location: City of Hamilton, Procurement Section, Standard Life Building,

120 King Street West, 9th Floor, Suite 900, Hamilton, ON, L8P 4V2

Time: 8:30 am to 4:30 pm

If using a courier service to pick up and pay for documents on your behalf, ensure you provide them with the applicable <u>fee payment</u> and <u>return courier waybill</u>.

To help with the processing of couriered documents, email the following information to:

Email: procurement@hamilton.ca

Subject: Contract number

- Company name, address and fax number
- Contact name and telephone number
- Courier's name
- Courier account number

Documents will not be released by collect courier shipment, and the City will not be responsible for any lost fee.

A complete set of Request for Proposals documents will be available for viewing at the Procurement Section at the location stated above.

Proposals shall be publicly opened at the Procurement Section Office following the closing date and time of the Request for Proposals.

4.3 Accommodations for Proponents with Disabilities

In accordance with the Ontario Human Rights Code, Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001 (ODA) and Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA), the City of Hamilton will accommodate for a disability, ensuring full and equitable participation throughout the bid process.

If a Proponent requires this Request for Proposals in a different format to accommodate a disability, the Proponent must contact the Procurement Specialist as soon as possible and in any event prior to the closing date. The Request for Proposals in the different format will be issued only to the requesting Proponent and all Addenda will be issued in such different format only to the requesting Proponent.

Procurement Manager City of Hamilton

INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPONENTS

Request for Proposals

Document Source: Request for Proposals - Consulting Services
Revised: June 11, 2015

Table of Contents

1.	Interpretation	12
2.	Nature of the RFP	18
3.	Proposal Submissions and Form of Proposal	20
4.	Confidentiality	22
5.	Prices	23
6.	Variation in Proposal Prices	24
7.	Price and Payments	24
8.	Conflict of Interest (Proponents)	25
9.	Withdrawal of Proposals by Proponent	26
10.	Expertise and Experience	27
11.	Proposals Open for Acceptance, Irrevocable, etc.	27
12.	Proponent's Responsibility	27
13.	Proposal Security	29
14.	Performance and Other Security, Contract to Bond	29
15.	Performance Review	29
16.	Permits, Licences and Approvals	31
17.	Taxes	32
18.	Electronic Funds Transfer	32
	Nomination of Sub-Consultants	34
20.	Addenda and Clarification of the Request for Proposals	34
21.	Alternate Proposals and Optional Features etc.	36
22.	Reserved Privileges of the City	36
23.	Obligation of Suppliers to Deal in Good Faith	39
24.	Record and Reputation	41
25.	Review of Proposals	41
	Rejection of Proposals by City	42
	Guidelines Regarding Proposal Irregularities	43
28.	Brand Name	45
29.	Standard Warranty	46
30.	Security Clearance	46
	Observance of Laws, Statutes and Regulations	46
	General Contract Provisions	46
33.	Insurance Requirements	47
	Proof of Insurance	49
	WSIB	49
	Non – Performance	50
	Indemnification	50
	Patents and Copyrights	51
	Warranties of the Successful Proponent	51
	Covenants of each Proponent	52
41.	Time for Completion	53

42.	Time Is Of the Essence	54
43.	Delay	54
44.	Modifications of Methods and Equipment	54
45.	Use of City Property and Character and Conduct of Employees	54
46.	Conflict of Interest, etc.	55
47.	Assignment and Sub-Consulting	57
48.	Project Identification	58
49.	Liens to Be Discharged	58
50.	Ownership of Documents, Use of Designs, etc.	58
51.	Deviation from Contract Documents and "Good Practice"	59
52.	Successful Proponent's Default and City's Remedies	59
53.	Information to be Kept Confidential	63
54.	Non-disclosure and No Comment	65
55.	Information Provided by City	65
56.	Copyright and Use of Documents	65
57.	Governing Law	66
58.	Severance Where Provision Illegal, etc.	66
59.	Contract Non Exclusive	66
60.	Accrued Rights and Remedies	66
61.	Excessive Claims	66
62.	Force Majeure	67
63.	Successors and Assigns	68
	Accommodations for Proponents with Disabilities	69
	Ontarians With Disabilities Act, 2001 (ODA) and the Accessibility For	
	arians With Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA)	69
66.	Set-off	70

These Instructions define your obligations and limit your rights. Failure to follow the instructions may result in the disqualification of your Proposal. Read carefully.

1. Interpretation

- (1) In this RFP, the Contract and the Contract Documents, unless expressly provided otherwise, the following definitions shall apply:
 - (a) "Addendum" and "Addenda" means a written addendum or addenda issued with respect to this RFP;
 - (b) "Benchmark" means the minimum required score by category and by overall score of a Proponent's Proposal in order to proceed from Step 1 to Step 2 of the evaluation process. For this RFP, the Benchmark shall be 80 marks out of 100 marks;
 - (c) "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, public holiday or other day on which banks in Ontario are authorized or required by Law to be closed or any other day on which the administrative offices of the City are closed;
 - (d) "City" means the City of Hamilton and includes any of its designated employees, officials or agents who are engaged to represent the City in its capacity as Owner of the Project and also includes an employee designated to exercise a discretion on behalf of the City;
 - (e) "City's Representatives" includes the City's elected officials, officers and employees, and those agents, representatives, Independent Consultant and other persons expressly authorized by the City to act on its behalf, excluding the Successful Proponent and its Sub-Contractors;
 - (f) "Closing Time" means the deadline by which to submit Proposals for this RFP set out in the RFP Notice, as may be amended by Addendum or other written notice of the City;
 - (g) "Contract" means the contract arising upon the acceptance of a Proposal and award of the Contract by the City in accordance with the RFP, irrespective of when notice of acceptance of a Proposal is received by a Successful Proponent;
 - (h) "Contract Documents" means those documents as set out in section 1 (3) of these Instructions to Proponents;
 - (i) "Default" means any act or event of default as contemplated in section 52 of these Instructions to Proponents;

- (j) "Disbursements" means those costs, expenses and disbursements necessary for, as well as incidental to, the provision of Services pursuant to, or required by, the Contract which include, but are not limited to, software rights and licences and other intellectual property rights, plans, sketches, drawings, graphic representations, licences, fees, levies, permits and approvals, mileage, accommodations, telephone and other communication device charges (including long distance charges), transportation and fuel charges, postage and courier charges, all printing, binding, photocopying, paper document reproduction and other related expenses and all other things and incidentals necessary for completing the Project in accordance with the Contract, provincial certificate of approval fees for air and noise, municipal building and related permit fees payable to the City and site plan approval application fees. All anticipated and foreseeable Disbursements are to be accounted for in the lump sum Total Contract Price. No additional Disbursements will be paid by the City. except as otherwise specified in the Contract or as otherwise expressly agreed to in advance and in writing by the City.
- (k) "Evaluation Team" means a team consisting of members of City staff and, where considered appropriate by the City in the exercise of an absolute discretion, Independent Consultants, who will perform the evaluation of each of the Proposals and make such reports and recommendations to the award of this RFP as they consider appropriate;
- (I) "Form of Proposal" means the Form of Proposal set out in Form of Proposal section to this RFP comprising of two steps, namely, the "Form of Proposal (Step 1)" and the "Form of Proposal Cost Proposal (Step 2)";
- (m) "Form of Proposal Cost Proposal (Step 2)" may include the "Schedule of Prices":
- (n) "Goods" means any item of tangible personal property or computer software and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, includes deeds and instruments relating to or evidencing the title or right to such personal property, or a right to recover or receive such property;
- (o) "Independent Consultant" means any consultant, other than the Successful Proponent, retained by the City to advise and/or perform services on the behalf of the City with respect to the Project;
- (p) "Interlineation" means, for the purposes of Article 3(1)(h), the act of writing between the lines of the document, to add something to the pre-printed text of the Form of Proposal.
- (q) "Law" means all statutes, Laws, by-laws, regulations, requirements, ordinances, notices, rulings, orders, directives, policies and controls of the

- municipal, provincial, and federal governments and any other Lawful authority and all court orders, judgments and declarations of a court of competent jurisdiction;
- (r) "Project" means the supply and delivery of Goods, the delivery and performance of any Services and the completion of the Work in whole or in part as contemplated in the Proposal;
- (s) "Project Manager" means the person designated by the City to manage the delivery or performance of the Services to which the RFP relates, or to oversee the Project and/or the City's obligations under the Contract and when there is no such designate appointed by the City, the City shall be the Project Manager;
- (t) "Proponent" means any person submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP;
- (u) "Proposal" means a proposal made by a Proponent in response to this RFP:
- (v) "Proposal Submission Information" means the submission requirements and evaluation and selection process information for Proposals contained in this RFP;
- (w) "Procurement Manager" means the City's Procurement Manager or the City's Director of Financial Services;
- (x) "RFP" means this Request for Proposals including the Communications Notice, RFP Notice, the Instructions to Proponents, the Proposal Submission Information, the Special Provisions, the Form of Proposal (Step 1), the Form of Proposal – Cost Proposal (Step 2) and Schedules, the Terms of Reference, and any other Appendices and all Addenda to the RFP together with all other documents expressly forming part of the RFP for this Project (also collectively referred to as "RFP Documents");
- (y) "Services" means a service of any description whether commercial, industrial, trade, or otherwise and includes, without limitation:
 - (i) all professional, technical and artistic services, and the transporting, acquiring, supplying, storing and otherwise dealing in works and Goods, as contemplated by this RFP;
 - (ii) all consulting services identified in the Contract and those not identified in the Contract but necessary and prudent, in accordance with industry standards for such Projects, to properly and fully complete the Project and perform the undertakings contemplated in the Contract;

- (iii) all incidentals necessary for proper, diligent and satisfactory execution of the Services and the fulfillment of all other contractual obligations and undertakings of the Successful Proponent under the Contract;
- (z) "Sub-Contractor" is a person or entity having a direct contract with the Successful Proponent to perform a part or parts of the Services or to supply Goods and/or Services with respect to the Project, upon the prior approval of the City;
- (aa) "Successful Proponent" means the Proponent whose Proposal is selected and is awarded the Contract for this RFP by the City;
- (bb) "Supply" means the supply of a Good or Service, and
 - (i) in relation to a Good, includes the sale, rental, lease or other disposition or provision of the Good or an interest therein or a right thereto, or an offer so to dispose of the Good or interest therein or a right thereto, and
 - (ii) In relation to a Service, includes the sale, rental or other disposition or provision of the Service or an offer so to provide a service;
- (cc) "Taxes" or "Value Added Taxes" means such sum as shall be levied upon the Total Contract Price by the Federal or Provincial or Territorial Government and is computed as a percentage of the Total Contract Price and includes the Goods and Services Tax, the Ontario Retail Sales Tax, the Quebec Sales Tax, the Harmonized Sales Tax, and any similar tax, the collection and payment of which have been imposed on the Proponent by the tax legislation;
- (dd) "Total Contract Price" means the fully inclusive, all-in total contract price, constituting the sum of all costs quoted by a Proponent in its Proposal with respect to the Project, Work or Supply,
 - 1. including the purchase price for all materials, labour costs, service costs, costs for temporary structures and facilities, utility costs, warranty costs, life cycle costs, operating and disposal costs; but
 - 2. excluding any options or alternatives requested in the Contract Documents that the City elects not to purchase; and
 - excluding Taxes or other applicable sales or value added taxes, imposed under the Laws of Ontario and the Laws of Canada applicable therein.

- (ee) "Unit Price" means any unit price or other component of the Total Contract Price;
- (ff) "Work" means the total performance and related services required to complete the Project and include all incidentals necessary for proper and satisfactory execution of the Work and the fulfillment of all contractual obligations and undertakings. Where for any reason the City elects to terminate work on the Project (or otherwise discontinue such work for an indefinite period) before final completion, the Work and Project shall be deemed to be limited to that portion of the same as has been completed up to and including the time of termination.
- (gg) "WEEE Program" means the Province of Ontario's Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Program.
- (2) Where in this RFP a reference is made to the express written agreement of the City, it shall be understood that the City shall not be deemed or construed to have agreed to any stipulation, specification, exclusion, limitation or other term or condition set out in a Proposal that deviates from a provision set out in any of the RFP Documents, unless that deviation is expressly confirmed in a written and express amendment to that agreement.
- (3) In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between, or an omission or ambiguity with respect to, any term(s), condition(s) or provision(s) contained in any of the following Contract Documents, the term(s), condition(s) or provision(s) contained in the following documents shall apply and prevail in the following successive order of priority to the extent of such conflict, inconsistency, omission or ambiguity or incongruity:
 - (a) any Addenda to this RFP;
 - (b) any supplementary conditions (if any)
 - (c) Proposal Submission Information;
 - (d) terms of reference:
 - (e) any contract drawings
 - (f) Supplementary Instructions (if any)
 - (g) Special Provisions (if any);
 - (h) Instructions to Proponents;
 - (i) Form of Proposal (Step 1);
 - (j) Form of Proposal Cost Proposal (Step 2);
 - (k) the sample Contract (if any);
 - (I) any other documents that form a part of the Request for Proposals;
 - (m) Successful Proponent's Proposal, as accepted by the City.

- (4) Notwithstanding subsection 1(3) of these Instructions to Proponents, in the event of conflict between any of the provisions of the Contract Documents, the provision most favourable to the City, in the City's determination, shall prevail and apply.
- (5) The City shall not be bound by any oral representation or communication whatsoever, including but not limited to any instruction, amendment or clarification of these Instructions to Proponents or any of the Contract Documents, or any information, advice, inference or suggestion, from any person (including but not limited to an elected official, employee, agent, Independent Consultant or representative of the City) concerning a Proponent's submissions, the RFP, the Contract Documents, the proposed Contract or any other matter concerning the RFP or Project. In addition, the City shall not be bound by any written representation whatsoever concerning a Proponent's submissions, the RFP, the Contract Documents, the proposed Contract or any other matter concerning the RFP or Project unless executed by the person designated and authorized in accordance with the Contract Documents or in accordance with a direction or authorization of City Council.
- (6) In these Instructions to Proponents and in all of the Contract Documents, unless the context otherwise necessitates,
 - a word importing the masculine, feminine or neuter gender only includes members of the other genders; and a word defined in or importing the singular number has the same meaning when used in the plural number, and vice versa;
 - (b) a reference to any Law or to a provision thereof shall be deemed to include a reference to any Law enacted in substitution thereof or amendment thereof;
 - (c) the headings to each section are inserted for convenience of reference only and do not form part of the Contract;
 - (d) all accounting terms have the meaning recognized by or ascribed to those terms by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants;
 - (e) all amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars and to be secured and payable in Canadian dollars;
 - (f) all references to time shall be deemed to be references to current time in the City;
 - (g) any reference to an officer of the City shall be construed to mean the person holding that office from time to time, and the designate or deputy of that person, and shall be deemed to include a reference to any person holding a successor office or the designate or deputy of that person;

(h) Any words and abbreviations, which have well-known professional, technical or trade meanings, are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.

2. Nature of the RFP

- (1) The RFP constitutes an invitation to Proponents describing the intent, purpose, requirements and concerns of the City and prescribes how Proponents are to respond to this RFP.
- (2) This RFP may contain a general description of the City's requirements, including location constraints, information on space requirements, performance requirements and other technical specifications, warranty and maintenance requirements and other factors that the City intends to take into account in the award of the Contract.
- (3) These Instructions to Proponents, the Proposal Submission Information and other RFP Documents explain how Proponents are to submit Proposals and address certain legal requirements and implications relating to the Proposal process and Contract and summarize how the Contract will be concluded.
- (4) Without limiting any other right or privilege of the City contained in the RFP, the following rules shall govern the evaluation of Proposals:
 - (a) The City may consider the full range of options, amenities and enhancement features offered by a Proponent when awarding the Contract. The City shall be the sole judge as to whether the added value offered in respect thereof justifies any additional expenditure. This RFP may be subject to possible cost constraints, which the City shall not be obliged to disclose to any Proponent, which may rule out the selection of a Proposal. While the City shall not be obligated to consider optional features, no optional features will be considered by the City unless the Proponent's submission fully complies with the RFP in all respects.
 - (b) The City reserves the right to award the Contract based solely upon considerations of Total Contract Price, or Total Contract Price with Options, or upon performance, technical, warranty, maintenance, compatibility and other considerations contained in section 22 (Reserved Privileges of the City) and section 24 (Record and Reputation), or any combination thereof, as the City considers it in its best interests to do so.
 - (c) Where compliance with any specified criteria is stated to be a condition precedent to the award of the Contract, that condition shall be deemed to be for the exclusive benefit of the City, which may elect to waive that condition in its absolution discretion, and the City shall not be liable to any person by reason of so doing.

- (d) Based upon the evaluation criteria set by the City, all compliant Proposals shall be evaluated, and a recommendation may be made to Council (or the designated person with authority delegated by Council to approve the recommendation for award) to award the Contract to the Proponent whose Proposal best satisfies the criteria that have been established by the City, but where the City for any reason in its sole discretion decides that all Proposals received were unsatisfactory, or that the terms and conditions set out in the RFP or an Addendum cannot be realized with that Proponent whose Proposal best satisfies the criteria that have been established by the City, then the City reserves the absolute right, as it sees fit.
 - (i) to revise and reissue the RFP;
 - (ii) to cancel the RFP,

And in no such case shall any person have any legal claim or recourse against the City and the City's representatives on any ground whatsoever. The exercise of a right by the City shall not preclude the exercise by the City of any other right.

- (e) The Proposals will be evaluated based on the criteria listed in this RFP and/or any Addendum or Addenda thereto. Unless a specific weighting is indicated in this RFP or any Addendum or Addenda thereto,
 - (i) The City may give such weighting to each of the identified criteria as the City considers appropriate; and
 - (ii) It is within the exclusive discretion of the City to determine which of the features specified by a Proponent and any other features specified in the RFP or any Addendum or Addenda thereto offers the City the best value for money.

Subject to the foregoing, the criteria for the evaluation of Proposals shall be as specified by the City from time to time, and the City shall be the sole authority to determine how those criteria are to be interpreted and applied, and the weighting to be given to each criterion, if any.

(f) The Evaluation Team may include such members of the City's staff and outside Independent Consultants as the City considers is necessary or advisable to provide proper technical (including legal and financial) evaluation and analysis of the Proposals that have been made. Depending upon the background and expertise required, evaluators may not individually score every component. The Evaluation Team will meet as required to create a team score for each Proponent's Proposal. The Evaluation Team may modify the Evaluation Team's score to reflect additional information obtained during the clarification of Proposals or at any meetings or interviews scheduled with Proponents.

- (g) The City shall not be obliged to disclose the evaluation scores of any individual member of the Evaluation Team, nor to justify any score awarded by that team or any member thereof. In the absence of evidence of manifest bad faith, any evaluation carried out by the Evaluation Team shall be considered to be fair and accurate for all purposes and shall not be subject to review by any court or other tribunal.
- (5) The City wishes to fully understand each Proponent's Proposal. Therefore, each Proponent is encouraged to submit any additional material that it believes will facilitate the evaluation process, subject to any page quantity submission restrictions contained in this RFP. Furthermore the Proponent must make available to the City additional evaluation information as requested by the City.
- (6) At its election, the City may use the RFP process to identify a short-list of Proponents. Following an initial evaluation, the City may invite such number of the top-ranked Proponent(s) as it considers advisable, to present their concept to the Evaluation Team in a formal interview session. Performance in this interview may be taken into account in the evaluation process.

3. Proposal Submissions and Form of Proposal

- (1) Every Proposal shall
 - (a) be submitted on the City's prescribed Form of Proposal in its entirety;
 - (b) be legible;
 - (c) be completed in ink (printed or typed);
 - (d) be completed in English;
 - (e) bear the original signature of the Proponent (or, in the case of a Proposal submitted by a corporation, an authorized signing officer of the corporation), inscribed in the space provided;
 - (f) be submitted in a sealed, opaque package (the Proponent is asked to use the City provided submission labels if possible and where the Proposal Submission Information require a two package or envelope process, in two sealed packages) and is clearly marked with the title and contract number of the Request for Proposals (RFP);
 - (g) be delivered only to the Procurement Section Office;
 - (h) be completed without Interlineation, alteration, change, overwriting, whiteout, cross out, strike out or erasure of or with respect to,
 - (i) any of the pre-printed text provided by the City or amended by addenda; or

- (ii) information included on the Form of Proposal by the Proponent, unless the effect thereof is legible, clear and unambiguous as is the consent of the Proponent in the form of initials to that Interlineation, alteration, change, overwrite, whiteout, cross out, strike out or erasure. This means all Interlineations, alterations, changes, overwrites, whiteouts, cross outs, strike outs or erasures are to be initialled.
- (i) have all of the required blank spaces provided on the Form of Proposal completed by the Proponent;
- (j) include all material, Goods, Services, equipment and labour, required to complete the Work; and
- (k) state all prices in Canadian funds, unless otherwise stipulated.
- (2) A Proposal submitted by fax, e-mail or other electronic means will not be accepted.
- (3) A Proposal that is not submitted in a sealed package will not be accepted. The City shall not be under any obligation to return an unsealed Proposal to the Proponent, nor to notify the Proponent that the package was not sealed.
- (4) Time is of the essence with respect to the submission of a Proposal. It is the **sole** responsibility of each Proponent to ensure that its Proposal is delivered to the correct address no later than the closing date and time of the Request for Proposals.
- (5) A Proposal shall be deemed to have been submitted only when actually stamped as received at the Procurement Section Office on or before 3:00:59 p.m. Hamilton time on the closing date specified in the Request for Proposal Notice or as subsequently amended by Addendum. The Procurement Section Office's reception time clock shall be deemed to be the official indicator of Hamilton time.
- (6) It is the exclusive responsibility of each Proponent to submit a complete Proposal in accordance with the Request for Proposals.
- (7) All documents prepared and work carried out by a Proponent in preparing a Proposal, and all oral presentations to the City in connection with a Proposal, shall be without cost to the City, and neither the City's publication of a Request for Proposals nor the submission of a Proposal shall be construed to oblige the City to award a Contract.
- (8) A Proposal should, where printed or typed, be set out in print no smaller than Arial 12 point or Verdana 12 point and except where otherwise directed, all printed material should be produced on double sided, post consumer content (recycled) standard letter (8 1/2 inch by 11 inch) or legal (8 1/2 inch by 14 inch) sized paper.

- (9) All words and phrases forming part of a Proposal should be written out in full, and abbreviations should not be used.
- (10) The City of Hamilton will only accept a Proposal which contains original documents with original signatures as part of its Proposal, unless expressly stated otherwise in this Request for Proposals.
- (11) No amendment may be made to a Proposal after it has been submitted, except in the circumstances set out in Article 20.4 of these Instructions to Proponents.

4. Confidentiality

- (1) In accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act ("MFIPPA") and Personal Health Information Protection Act ("PHIPA"), this will notify the Proponents that any personal information Proponents provide is being collected under authority of the Municipal Act, 2001, SO. 2001, c. 25, as amended, and will be used in the evaluation process and, with respect to the Successful Proponent, for the purposes of the subsequent Contract. All correspondence, documentation and information provided to the City and/or the City's Representatives by any Proponent in connection with, or arising out of this RFP, and any Proposal submitted to the City will become the property of the City and a record of the City. The foregoing records and the Contract Documents are subject to the provisions of the MFIPPA and PHIPA and the City's obligations hereunder and may be released pursuant to such Acts. The Proponent's name at a minimum will be made public on request. In addition, certain contractual information must be disclosed to Council and accordingly may become part of the public record. All correspondence, documentation and information provided to the Evaluation Team may be reproduced for the purposes of evaluating the Proponent's submission to this RFP.
- (2) For the purposes of MFIPPA, Proponents may mark as confidential any scientific, technical, commercial, proprietary or similar confidential information contained in their submission, the disclosure of which could cause them injury, except the Total Contract Price and their name. Complete Proposals are not to be identified as confidential. A watermark or rubber stamp imprint is suitable for this purpose. Subject to subsection (1), the City will use its best efforts not to disclose any information so marked but shall not be liable in any manner to a Proponent or any other person where information is disclosed by virtue of an order of the Privacy Commissioner, a court of competent jurisdiction or otherwise as required by Law. The City further makes no representations or warranties that the identification of a document as confidential will prevent its release under the provisions of MFIPPA, PHIPA or otherwise under Law. Any information in the Proponents' submissions that is not specifically identified as confidential may be treated as public information.
- (3) Information regarding the application of MFIPPA and PHIPA is available from the Access to Information and Privacy Section of the City Clerk's office at City Hall.

- (4) Confidentiality of records and information of the City relating to this Project must be maintained at all times. All correspondence, documentation and information provided by City and/or the City's Representatives to any Proponent in connection with, or arising out of this RFP or the acceptance of any Proposal remains the property of the City; must be treated as confidential; and must not be used for any purpose other than for replying to this RFP and for fulfillment of any related subsequent Contract. Where any proprietary or confidential information belonging to or in the care of the City is disclosed to any Proponent in connection with the RFP, the Proponent shall
 - (a) safeguard all information provided by the City and the City's Representatives, or any other person at the request of the City;
 - (b) maintain in strict confidence and not reproduce or disclose any such information to any person except as required by Law or as expressly permitted in advance by the City in writing;
 - (c) return forthwith and without demand all such information as may be in documentary form or recorded electronically by the Closing Time; and
 - (d) Not use any such information for any purpose other than the purpose for which it was provided by the City or by any other person at the request of the City.

5. Prices

- (1) The City shall not be required to cause prices to be read out publicly on the opening of Proposals or at any other time.
- (2) Only the Proponents' name and receipt of documents shall be publicly acknowledged at the Procurement Section Office at approximately 3:01 p.m. local Hamilton time (meeting room to be determined) on the closing date of the Request for Proposals.
- (3) Unit Prices and other monetary components of the Total Contract Price will not be disclosed.
- (4) Unless otherwise stipulated in the Special Provisions, all prices bid, including any Unit Prices, must be in stated in Canadian funds.
- (5) The award of the Contract may be based on considerations other than price and may employ the utilization of a scoring method using evaluation criteria, as provided in this RFP.
- (6) Once the Contract has been awarded, only the Total Contract Price and total score of the Successful Proponent will be disclosed. Official notification will only be given to the Successful Proponent; however, persons who submitted a Proposal may obtain the Total Contract Prices for all Proponents upon request to

the Procurement Specialist designated as the contact person for purposes of the RFP.

(7) Award information will be posted on the following website: **biddingo.com/Hamilton**

6. Variation in Proposal Prices

- (1) No variation in the method of calculating any price or rate (including but not limited to the Total Contract Price, any Unit Prices, any other lump sum prices) shall be permitted after the closing date and time except,
 - (a) in the instance of variation due solely to an increase or decrease in the rate of applicable Taxes beyond the control of the Proponent, occurring after the time and date of submission of its Proposal, in which case the variation shall alter the price of the Proposal only to the extent of the such Tax increase or decrease;
 - (b) For greater certainty, this excludes any increases in WEEE Program fees;
 - (c) Where the City exercises its discretion, which it shall not be obliged to do so, to correct a patent computational or other mathematical error evident on the face of the Proposal.
- (2) In the event that the PST or GST increase or decrease occurs after the submission of its Proposal, the Proponent must prove to the satisfaction of the City of Hamilton that the Proponent will not benefit in any way by reason of the increase.

7. Price and Payments

- (1) The payment of the Total Contract Price (including but not limited to Unit Prices) with respect to Services performed by the Successful Proponent shall be made in accordance with the City's Procurement Policy, as amended. Payment of additional services shall be made in the same manner.
- (2) Progress payments for the Services performed by the Successful Proponent shall be made only where expressly agreed in writing by the City.
- (3) A claim for a progress payment made by the Successful Proponent shall not include any aspect of the Services not yet fully and properly performed.
- (4) If any work or item under the Contract is included by the Successful Proponent in its progress claims as partially or fully completed, but it is not completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, or is not completed to the City's satisfaction, the City may withhold from payment such part or the total cost of those items until they are completed or corrected to its full satisfaction, and the

- City shall notify the Successful Proponent in writing of its action and the reason for same.
- (5) The City reserves up to ten Business Days from the date of the receipt of the Successful Proponent's invoice for reviewing, inspecting and confirming the receipt and performance of the Services in accordance with the Contract.
- (6) Where a contingency allowance is expressly provided for in the Contract, the Successful Proponent shall not be entitled to payment of the whole or any part of that amount, except to the extent that it can be shown that extra or additional Services have been carried out by the Successful Proponent beyond that contemplated within the Contract, and those extra Services have been approved, in advance, by the City's Project Manager or contract representative as set out in the Contract, or in default of such a provision, the City's Procurement Manager.

8. Conflict of Interest (Proponents)

- (1) No employee of the City shall personally sell Goods or Services to the City, nor have a direct or indirect interest in a company that sells Goods or Services to the City.
- (2) The City may reject any Proposal submitted, or cancel any contract awarded, in contravention of this section.
- (3) Each Proponent respectively shall be deemed to have warranted that it has not employed or retained any person, other than a bona fide employee, agent or broker working for the Proponent, to solicit or secure the proposed contract, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, other than a bona fide employee, agent or broker working solely for the Proponent, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award of that proposed contract, or as an inducement to be awarded that contract. Without prejudice to any of its other rights, the City reserves the right to annul any contract or other arrangement entered into with a Proponent where there is a breach of this warranty.
- (4) Prior to the award of the Contract, no Proponent shall contact any elected official of the City or member of City staff or Independent Consultant retained by the City with respect to its Proposal, the RFP or the proposed Contract, except the Procurement Specialist or other person designated for that purpose in the RFP documents.
- (5) Except with the prior express written consent of the City,
 - (a) No Proponent shall act on behalf of the City with respect to any matter, issue or in connection with any property in which the Proponent or any

- director, officer, employee or Sub-Consultant of the Proponent has a direct or indirect pecuniary interest, including any contingent interest;
- (b) Before submitting any Proposal to act on behalf of the City, the Proponent shall exercise reasonable due diligence to confirm that there is no conflict of interest within the contemplation of subsection (5) (a) or subsection (6);
- (6) Each Proponent shall not act in any case where there may be any conflict of interest between it (or any of its directors, officers, employees or Sub-Consultants) and the City, and each Proponent shall notify the City, in writing, immediately of any potential conflict of interest that may arise prior to the award of the Contract and fully disclose any details thereof.

9. Withdrawal of Proposals by Proponent

- (1) Withdrawal of a sealed Proposal after its submission to the Procurement Section is permitted only prior to the Closing Time of the RFP.
- (2) A Proponent may withdraw a Proposal at any time prior to the Closing Time for the RFP, by delivering a written request to that effect to the address specified for the deposit of Proposals, but no such request to withdraw received after the Closing Time shall be effective.
- (3) A Proponent who withdraws a Proposal prior to the Closing Time for the submission of Proposals may submit a revised written, signed and sealed Proposal at any time prior to the Closing Time, but otherwise no amendment may be made to a Proposal after it has been submitted, and in particular no amendment may be made to a Proposal orally, or by fax, e-mail, or otherwise than by a sealed document. Proponents are advised that revisions to a Proposal, after its submission, as a result of the issuance of an Addendum or other notice of change of the RFP by the City, may only be done by the withdrawal of the original Proposal and submission of a revised Proposal prior to the Closing Time.
- (4) A withdrawal request shall be effective only where made in writing on company letterhead, signed by the Proponent or authorized representative of the Proponent, and actually received by the Procurement Section prior to the Closing Time. A faxed withdrawal may be accepted where its authenticity appears genuine, in the absolute discretion of the Procurement Manager. Fax documents are considered to be received only when receipt is confirmed in writing (including by fax or e-mail) by the Procurement Specialist designated in the RFP. It shall be the sole responsibility of the Proponent to ensure that a withdrawal is properly delivered to and received by the City.

10. Expertise and Experience

Proponents submitting Proposals and all the Sub-Consultants they propose to use on or in connection with the Services to be supplied under the Contract shall be actively engaged and thoroughly experienced in the lines of work required by the Contract and shall be able to refer to previous work of a similar nature satisfactorily performed by them. The Successful Proponent must be licensed to practice in the area in which the primary services under the Contract are to be provided, by the applicable professional body. In the case of architects, pursuant to the *Architects Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. A.26*, the Successful Proponent must be licensed by the Ontario Association of Architects or any successor body. In the case of engineers, pursuant to the *Professional Engineers Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.28*, the Successful Proponent must be licensed by the Association of Professional Engineers Ontario or any successor body.

11. Proposals Open for Acceptance, Irrevocable, etc.

- (1) Proposals shall not be opened until after the Closing Time of the RFP, and so far as practicable, all Proposals shall be opened at one time.
- (2) Unless otherwise provided in a Special Provision or Addendum to this RFP, a Proposal shall be irrevocable (i.e. open for acceptance by the City of Hamilton) for a period of **90 calendar days** following the closing date for the RFP.
- (3) The Contract shall be deemed to arise upon the acceptance of the Successful Proponent's Proposal by the City. The Contract Documents shall form the Contract between the Successful Proponent and the City. The Successful Proponent shall be responsible to the City for any costs, expenses, losses, damages and liabilities that the City may incur as a result of the Successful Proponent's failure or refusal to execute the Contract as required.

12. Proponent's Responsibility

- (1) Unless otherwise expressly agreed to by the City in writing, where technical information or details is provided by the City and forms part of the RFP or any Addenda thereto (including any quantity estimates, soil condition reports, ground water or drainage reports or geophysical data, archaeological and heritage information and documentation, samples, or other documents of a similar kind or nature as may be provided together with the RFP Documents or incorporated by reference therein),
 - (a) the City shall exercise reasonable care in the preparation of those estimates, documents and information but shall not be taken to warrant their accuracy and shall not be liable for any inaccuracy therein unless that inaccuracy is the result of the deliberate misrepresentation of the City or a member of its staff:

- (b) estimates, reports, data, or details shall be deemed to have been provided only as a guide for potential Proponents;
- (c) Proponents are required to examine carefully that information and the responsibility for verification of the information so provided shall rest with each Proponent;
- (d) The City shall not be responsible for the accuracy of information provided by the City from third party sources for use by a Proponent including the Successful Proponent. All such information shall be verified by the Proponent or the Successful Proponent before relying on same; and
- (e) The Proponents shall be deemed to have released and waived any rights and claims against the City and the City's Representatives for any negligent misrepresentation, error or omission.
- (2) Where the Project is to be carried out on City occupied or owned property, Proponents shall be responsible for visiting the job site and no allowance shall be made by the City for failure by the Proponent to examine carefully all conditions relating to the site or Work.
- (3) All persons submitting Proposals and all their Sub-Consultants shall be held to have thoroughly examined all RFP Documents and to have visited and inspected the site on which the Services, Project and Work is to be carried out, or the Supply is to be made, and to have thoroughly familiarized themselves with all pertinent conditions before delivery of their respective Proposals, and no allowance shall be subsequently given by the City for or by reason of any error or omission on the part of any Proponent or Sub-Consultant with respect thereto. The City shall not be liable for any costs associated with any site inspection.
- (4) Where clarification of any information, document or matter is required by a Proponent, it shall be the responsibility of the Proponent to seek clarification in a timely manner from the City, in sufficient time to permit the City to respond, and satisfy itself with respect to same before submitting a Proposal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall have no obligation to respond.
- (5) It is the Proponent's responsibility to become familiar with and comply with all City Procurement policies.
- (6) A Proponent shall be deemed to have included in the Total Contract Price quoted in its Proposal, the entire cost of,
 - (a) All items that the Successful Proponent is responsible for under any of the Contract Documents, except where expressly provided otherwise;
 - (b) Preparing and submitting such reports, drawings or documents as may be required by the City.

- (7) Without limiting the generality of any other provision of these Instructions to Proponents, unless otherwise provided in the RFP Documents, the Successful Proponent shall be required to provide and pay for (where applicable):
 - (a) all material, labour and service costs, charges for use of software, intellectual property, tools and equipment whether owned, licensed or rented, and where any work is to be carried out or Services are to be rendered on property owned or occupied by the City, all protective and safety provisions, site signs and site conveniences, together with all Services and associated equipment and materials or other incidentals whether shown or specified or required by best practices (as applicable);
 - (b) insurance, licences, permits and inspections; all applicable Taxes, worker's compensation and all other applicable labour-compensation charges necessary to carry out its duties with respect to the Project, in accordance with the RFP Documents;
 - (c) All Services and materials required to carry out the Proponent's responsibilities and duties with respect to the Project in accordance with the RFP Documents and all instructions given by the City under the Contract, in accordance with governing regulations and codes and in compliance with best industrial and commercial practices for first class workmanship.

13. Proposal Security

(1) A Proposal security is not required for this RFP.

14. Performance and Other Security, Contract to Bond

- (1) A Performance security is not required for this RFP.
- (2) A Labour and Material payment security is not required for this RFP.

15. Performance Review

- (1) Where the City's Procurement Manager so directs, the City and the Successful Proponent shall carry out a periodic performance review in accordance with this section concerning the provision of Services by the Successful Proponent.
- (2) Performance under the Contract shall be assessed by reference to the following criteria:
 - (a) general responsiveness of the work relationship;
 - (b) conformity of the provision of Services with the Contract Documents;

- (c) general conformity with the reasonable expectations of the City under the terms of the Contract in their entirety;
- (d) general dependability of the Goods or Services supplied;
- (e) turn-around time on the placement of orders (to the extent applicable);
- (f) accuracy of carrying out instructions.
- (3) The respective representatives of the City and Successful Proponent shall meet at mutually agreeable times within ten Business Days of the end of each consecutive six month period of the provision of services under this Contract.
- (4) Where a performance review is conducted under subsection (3), each of the agreed aspects of the Successful Proponent's performance shall be ranked by the City at one of the following standards:
 - (a) Satisfactory (performance in accordance of general standard of City suppliers);
 - (b) Unacceptable (performance well below the general standard of City suppliers).
- (5) At any performance review under this section, the Successful Proponent shall be entitled to identify any aspect of the City's operations that is undermining the Successful Proponent's ability to deliver at least a satisfactory level of performance with respect to some criteria of assessment, and where the City concludes that this is in fact the case, the ranking given to the Successful Proponent with respect to that criteria of assessment will be adjusted accordingly.
- (6) Where at a performance review, one or more criteria of assessment are ranked as unacceptable,
 - (a) The parties shall agree at the time of the conduct of the review or within ten Business Days thereafter, on the measures to be taken by the Successful Proponent during the ensuing contract review period to improve its performance to at least a good standard;
 - (b) Within ten Business Days of agreeing on those measures, the Successful Proponent shall confirm in writing that the measures in question have been implemented.
- (7) Where the Successful Proponent fails or refuses to implement measures as provided in subsection (6), it shall be deemed to be in default under the Contract, and the City may take such remedies as provided for in the Contract Documents or are otherwise available at Law or in equity.

- (8) In addition to the regular performance review provided for under subsections (2) through (7), where in the opinion of the Procurement Manager the performance of the Successful Proponent is not satisfactory, then in addition to such other rights and remedies to which the City may be entitled to by Law or under the terms of any of the Contract Documents, the City may,
 - (a) Issue an oral warning to the Successful Proponent, identifying the noncompliance with the Specifications or other grounds of unsatisfactory performance, and requiring the Successful Proponent to correct the same;
 - (b) Issue a written notice, setting a time period for the Successful Proponent to correct the unsatisfactory performance, and warning that the Contract shall be liable to be terminated without further warning if the unsatisfactory performance is not corrected within the time allowed;

And until the City is satisfied that the unsatisfactory performance has been corrected, the City may holdback from any payment an amount sufficient to rectify the unsatisfactory performance until its requirements have been met.

- (9) Where the unsatisfactory performance of a supplier is not corrected within the time allowed under subsection (8),
 - (a) the City may apply any holdback retained under that subsection towards the correction of the unsatisfactory performance and may thereupon cancel the Contract with the Successful Proponent without further warning; and
 - (b) That fact may be taken into account by the City with regard to the award of any future contract.
- (10) Nothing in subsections (8) or (9) shall restrict the right of the City to terminate the Contract at any time under any other provision of the Contract Documents or under any rule of Law, but any such right may be exercised by the City in its absolute discretion.

16. Permits, Licences and Approvals

Unless otherwise expressly agreed by the City in writing, the Successful Proponent shall be responsible for applying for, obtaining and maintaining, at its own cost (other than the Building Permit fees, municipal Site Plan Approval or Committee of Adjustment application fees) all necessary permits, licences, consents and approvals relating to the provision of Services in accordance with the Contract and shall not do or suffer to be done anything in violation of any such permits, licences, consents and approvals. If the attention of the Successful Proponent is called to any such violation on the part of the Successful Proponent, or of any person employed or engaged by the Successful Proponent, the Successful Proponent shall immediately desist from and correct such violation.

17. Taxes

- (1) All prices shall be quoted exclusive of Taxes and the City may adjust any price quoted contrary to this requirement; unless otherwise specified in the Form of Proposal Cost Proposal (Step 2) or any Special Provisions.
- (2) Proponents shall expressly disclose any other applicable sales, customs or excise tax or duty, including a levy or duty imposed as a Special Import Measure, and other taxes to which any Work or supply of Services or materials may be subject, other than Tax.

18. Electronic Funds Transfer

In this section, the term "EFT" refers to electronic funds transfer and may also include the payment information transfer. All payments made by EFT shall only be made as a direct deposit to a Canadian chartered bank.

(1) Method of Payment

All payments by the City under this Proposal shall be made by electronic funds transfer (EFT) save and except where:

- the funds payable under the terms of the Contract are only payable in a single lump sum and not payable by installments or progress payments or otherwise than a single lump sum payment; or
- b) the City is unable to release one or more payments by EFT, in which case the Proponent agrees to either:
 - (i) accept payment by cheque or some other mutually agreeable method of payment; or
 - (ii) request the City to extend payment due dates until such time as the City makes payment by EFT,
 - (iii) subject to subsection (3) Suspension of Payment.

(2) <u>Mandatory Submission of Proponent's EFT Information</u>

- a) The Proponent is required to provide the City with the information required for the City to make payment by EFT. A Purchase Order may not be issued to the Successful Proponent without this requisite information.
- b) In the event that the EFT information changes, the Proponent shall be responsible for providing forthwith the updated information to the City.

(3) Suspension of Payment

- a) The City is not required to make any payment under this Proposal until its designated officer has received the correct EFT payment information from the Successful Proponent. Until receipt of the correct EFT information, any invoice or contract payment request shall be deemed not to be a proper invoice or valid request for the purpose of payment under this Contract. No interest or any other manner of claim whatsoever for delayed or nonpayment shall be permitted as a result of incorrect EFT information or improper delivery of EFT payment information.
- b) If the EFT information changes after submission of correct EFT information, the City shall have thirty (30) days within which to update the changed EFT information after its receipt by the designated officer to the extent payment is made by EFT. However, the Proponent may request that no further payments be made until the updated EFT information is implemented by the City's payment office. If such suspension would result in a late payment under any payment terms of this Contract, the Proponent's request for suspension shall extend the due date for payment by the number of days of the suspension.

(4) <u>Liability for Uncompleted or Erroneous Transfers</u>

- a) If an uncompleted or erroneous transfer occurs because the City used the Proponent's EFT information incorrectly, the City remains responsible for making a correct payment.
- b) If an uncompleted or erroneous transfer occurs because the Proponent's EFT information was incorrect, or was revised within thirty (30) days of City's release of the EFT payment transaction instruction, and
 - (i) funds are no longer under the control of the City's payment office, the City is deemed to have made payment and the Proponent is responsible for recovery of any erroneously directed funds; or
 - (ii) If the funds remain under the control of the City's payment office, the City shall not make payment and the provisions of subsection (3) Suspension of Payment shall apply.

(5) **EFT and Timely Payment**

A payment shall be deemed to have been made in a timely manner in accordance with the payment terms of the Contract if, in the City's EFT payment transaction instruction released to its Bank, the date specified for settlement of the payment is on or before the last date for due payment under the terms of the Contract, provided the specified payment date is a valid date when the City's Bank is open for business.

19. Nomination of Sub-Consultants

- (1) Unless otherwise stipulated in this RFP or any Addendum thereto, the Proponent shall indicate the names and addresses of all nominated Sub-Consultants that it proposes to use in the provision of Services and/or work contemplated by this RFP.
- (2) The City reserves the right to reject any Sub-Consultant so nominated, without penalty or liability to the City of any kind whatsoever.
- (3) No change shall be made to the list of nominated Sub-Consultants after the Closing Time of the RFP, without the prior written approval of the City and only on such terms and conditions as the City in the exercise of an absolute discretion may require.
- (4) Any Proponent requesting the City's consideration of a change of Sub-Consultant shall be responsible for all costs of the City to review, investigate and approve, if acceptable, such change including but not limited to all of the City's internal staff costs and all legal, financial and consultant costs. No approval of the City shall be effective until the Proponent has first paid to the City its costs with respect to same.

20. Addenda and Clarification of the Request for Proposals

- (1) The City reserves the right at any time prior to the award of the Contract,
 - (a) to withdraw or cancel the RFP;
 - (b) to extend the time for the submission of Proposals; or
 - (c) to modify the RFP,

by the publication of an Addendum, which shall become part of the RFP, and the City shall not be liable for any expense, cost, loss or damage incurred or suffered by any Proponent (or any other person) as a result of its so doing.

- (2) Without limiting the City's right, Article 20 (1) may apply to situations where no Proposal is compliant or an insufficient number of Proposals have been received.
- (3) Any Addendum shall be posted on the following website and is sufficiently served upon any prospective Proponent if so posted at: **biddingo.com/hamilton**
 - (a) In addition to the above method of posting, the City may also notify prospective Proponents of any Addendum by any other method it deems appropriate, including email, telephone, fax, courier, hand-delivery or by personal delivery. The need for additional notification and the method(s)

- to be used shall be in the absolute discretion of the City and notification shall be to the co-ordinates provided by the Proponent to the City at the time it obtained the RFP from the City.
- (b) It is the sole responsibility of each Proponent to check the website and ensure that it has received any and all Addenda issued by the City. Proponents shall confirm in the Form of Proposal that they have received, examined and provided for all Addenda issued under the RFP. Proponents may in writing, seek confirmation of the number of Addenda issued under the RFP from the Procurement Specialist named in the Communications page.
- (4) Where a Proposal has been received by the City prior to the publication of an Addendum, the City shall allow that Proponent to submit a revised Proposal prior to the closing date and time of the RFP. Any replacement sheets or other obligations otherwise required by the Addenda in order for a Proposal to be compliant shall be submitted by a Proponent with its Proposal by the closing date and time of the RFP. Where a Proposal is not revised following the publication of an Addendum, the Proponent will be deemed to have acknowledged all Addendum issued.
- (5) All communication between a Proponent and the City (including requests for information or clarification) **shall** be set down in writing and directed to the Procurement Specialist named in the Communications page.
- (6) Any request directed to the City with respect to Article 20 (5) prior to the closing date of the RFP must allow sufficient time for a written response or clarification to be issued by the City prior to the closing date, should the City consider it necessary to issue such response or clarification.
- (7) A written response or clarification of substance shall be shared with each Proponent and issued in the form of an Addendum.
- (8) The City shall not be bound by any oral:
 - (a) instruction:
 - (b) amendment or clarification of the RFP;
 - (c) information; or
 - (d) advice or suggestion,

provided by any member of the City's staff or consultant to the City concerning the RFP or the manner in which the Work is to be carried out and the Proponent bears any and all risk in relying on such representation.

- (9) If the City requires clarification of a Proponent's Proposal, that Proponent shall provide a written response to the City's request for clarification, in a timely manner, which shall bind the Proponent.
- (10) Each Proponent shall identify one senior individual by name, address and telephone number who will act as the Proponent's primary contact with the City with regard to this RFP and any subsequent Contract and has the authority to bind the Proponent.

21. Alternate Proposals and Optional Features etc.

(1) Alternate Proposals and Optional Features are not permitted for this RFP.

22. Reserved Privileges of the City

Without limiting or restricting any other right or privilege of the City, the City shall have the following reserved rights and privileges, which may be exercised or waived in its absolute discretion:

- (1) the City may reject any Proposal, the lowest priced Proposal or all Proposals, or may cancel the RFP and require the submission of new Proposals for any reason within its absolute discretion;
- (2) the City is not bound to accept the lowest priced compliant Proposal submitted and may accept another compliant Proposal which, in the City's opinion, is more beneficial to the City's interests notwithstanding that it may not be the lowest priced compliant Proposal;
- (3) when evaluating Proposals and assessing Proposal prices in the evaluation of Proposals and the awarding the Contract, the City will consider its best interests and may exercise reasonable commercial judgment which may, but is not obliged to, include consideration of the following factors (without limitation):
 - (a) Proposal prices;
 - (b) the full lifetime cost implications to the City with respect to each Proposal, including life-expectancy, the inclusion or exclusion of alternate or optional equipment or configurations and the price implications thereof, training or re-training costs, length and scope of warranty coverage, and long-term maintenance requirements;
 - (c) the need to achieve economies of scale in supply;
 - (d) the need to diversify sources of supply;

- (e) compatibility with existing equipment, such compatibility to be determined by tests conducted either by the City or by an independent testing agency satisfactory to the City;
- (f) compatibility with existing computer software and hardware, and capability to generate reports suitable to the City's existing reporting requirements; such compatibility and capability to be determined by tests conducted either by the City or by an independent testing agency satisfactory to the City;
- (g) potential cost savings to the City with existing City Contracts and other synergy benefits;
- (h) any extraordinary or unjustified disparity between the lowest priced Proposal and the other Proposals received by the City;
- (i) any prices contained in a Proposal that are, in the opinion of the Procurement Manager, below the Proponent's cost which do not appear to be offset by any other disclosed factors in the Proposal;
- (j) any prices contained in a Proponent's Schedule of Maximum Hourly Rates for Additional Services that are, in the opinion of the Procurement Manager, unreasonable or excessive compared to industry standards for the quality or type of personnel proposed for such Services;
- (k) the need to secure timely and reliable sources of supply;
- (I) the need to discontinue reliance on obsolete technology and methods;
- (m) the need to provide state of the art service to the residents of the City, or to integrate any aspect of City operations with those of its neighbours;
- (n) the need to avoid the use of unproven technology and methodologies;
- (o) the need to spread and minimize risk to the City;
- (p) the proximity of any service centre of a Proponent to the City;
- (q) the benefit in employing suppliers who have a proven track record of successful delivery and good reputation within the business community for integrity and competence;
- (r) the prior record of the Proponent as a vendor to the City;
- (s) whether in the opinion of the City or its professional advisors, the Proponent possesses the experience, or financial, technical, personnel or other resources that may reasonably be expected to be necessary in order

to carry out the obligations that the Proponent proposes to assume under the terms of its Proposal;

- (t) alternate Proposals;
- (u) such other considerations as would influence the decision of a reasonable and prudent purchaser in the particular circumstances of the City at the time when the Contract is awarded.
- (4) in awarding the Contract the City may take into account the adherence or non-adherence of a particular Proponent to the social, economic or labour relations policies of the City;
- (5) the City may waive compliance with any minor requirement governing the submission of Proposals;
- (6) where expressly so provided in any Special Provisions or Addendum, the City may:
 - (a) divide the final Contract and award on an individual component, phase or factor basis; or
 - (b) divide the final Contract and award by groups of components, phases or factors, and
 - (c) award the Contract to one or more Proponents, where each submits a substantially similar Proposal (or to require the submission of a final and best offer, in lieu thereof),

as the City may in its discretion consider to be in its best interest;

- (7) where in the view of the City, an insufficient number of Proposals have been received in response to a RFP, the City may publish a further such RFP (on the same or revised terms from the original request);
- (8) the City may, in accepting any Proposal, impose conditions on such acceptance;
- (9) where the lowest priced compliant Proposal exceeds the City's budgeted or estimated costs, the City in its sole and absolute discretion may, but is not obligated to:
 - (a) cancel the RFP;
 - (b) re-issue the RFP and accept new proposals based on revised specifications, terms and/or conditions;
 - (c) provide all Proponents, who submitted compliant Proposals to the RFP by the Closing Time, the opportunity to re-submit Proposals;

- (d) enter into negotiations with the Proponent with the lowest priced compliant Proposal provided that the changes required to achieve a Proposal acceptable to the City will not materially change the general nature of the specifications, terms and conditions in the RFP;
- (e) where only one Proposal has been received or only one Proposal is compliant with the RFP but the price is in excess of budgeted funds, proceed to negotiate conditions with such Proponent which will reduce costs to a level acceptable to the City.
- (10) where the Contract is awarded to the Proponent with the lowest priced compliant Proposal, the City may, at its sole discretion, negotiate amendments to the Contract or to Services or materials to be supplied under the Contract and no other Proponent shall have any right to object that its Proposal would have been lower had the negotiated amendments been included in the original RFP or RFP Notice.

23. Obligation of Suppliers to Deal in Good Faith

- (1) Each Proponent is required to deal with the City in utmost good faith both with respect to the submission of its Proposal and with respect to the performance of any Contract awarded by the City upon the acceptance of that Proposal.
- (2) A Proponent shall not discuss or communicate, directly or indirectly, with any other Proponent or their agent or representative about the preparation of the Proposals. Each Proponent attests that its participation in the RFP process is conducted without any collusion or fraud. If the City discovers there has been a breach of this requirement at any time, the City reserves the right to disqualify the Proposal(s) or terminate any ensuing Contract. Any and all Proponents participating in such discussions or communications, in breach of its obligations herein, shall be responsible for all costs and losses whatsoever that the City may incur as a result and the City may ban such Proponent(s) from competing for City contracts for a period of up to ten years where, in the reasonable opinion of the Procurement Manager, such breach has resulted in an impairment of the commercial relationship between the City and such Proponent(s).
- (3) Where the Contract is awarded to a Proponent who has made an unauthorized amendment to the City's Form of Proposal, then within a reasonable time of the City discovering that unauthorized amendment, the City may,
 - (a) cancel or terminate the Contract without any compensation whatsoever to the Proponent by giving written notice to that effect to the Proponent; and
 - (b) recover from such Proponent any amounts the City paid to the Proponent and all costs, expenses, damages and losses incurred or accrued by the City as a result of the unauthorized amendment; and

- (c) ban such Proponent from competing for City contracts for a period of up to ten years where, in the reasonable opinion of the Procurement Manager, the change was made by the Proponent as part of a deliberate attempt to deceive and such deception has resulted in an impairment of the commercial relationship between the City and such Proponent.
- (4) Where in the reasonable opinion of the Procurement Manager it is determined that.
 - (a) on any one or more occasions a Proponent has at any time:
 - (i) unlawfully or unreasonably threatened, intimidated, harassed, or otherwise interfered with an attempt by any other prospective supplier or Proponent to bid for a City contract or to perform any Contract awarded by the City to that supplier or Proponent;
 - (ii) unlawfully or unreasonably threatened, intimidated, harassed, or otherwise interfered with an official, employee, representative, agent or Independent Consultant or contractor of the City in the performance of his or her duties or in any way attempted to influence such persons;
 - (iii) assaulted or committed battery against any official, employee (including any constable, officer or other employee of Hamilton Police Services), representative, agent or Independent Consultant or contractor of the City in the performance of his or her duty;
 - (iv) deliberately retained a known over-payment, or has knowingly failed to notify the City of an over-payment or duplicate payment, or was wilfully blind to same;
 - (b) a Proponent has on one or more occasions, in the performance of a contract with the City (including the former Regional Municipality of Hamilton-Wentworth, or any local municipality which formed part of the Regional Municipality of Hamilton-Wentworth) deliberately, with wilful blindness or negligently, save and except an inadvertent error corrected to the satisfaction of the City within a reasonable time, as determined by the City,
 - (i) over-billed or double-billed;
 - (ii) charged for items not supplied;
 - (iii) charged for items of one grade, while supplying items of an inferior grade;

- (iv) made a misrepresentation as to the quality or origin of Goods, their functionality or suitability for a purpose, or their performance characteristics:
- (v) acted in a conflict with the interests of the City;
- (vi) misappropriated any property or right of the City, in any form; or
- (vii) committed any other form of sharp or deceptive practice,

the City may ban the Proponent and any person with whom the Proponent is not at arm's length within the meaning of the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) (without limiting the foregoing, it shall also include a shareholder, partner, officer, director or managerial or supervisory level employee of the Proponent or any other person directly involved in such act or omission), from competing for City contracts for a period of up to ten years where such act or omission has resulted in an impairment of the commercial relationship between the City and such Proponent in the opinion of the Procurement Manager.

24. Record and Reputation

See the City of Hamilton Procurement Policy for specific requirements and obligations at:

hamilton.ca/buying-selling-city/bids-tenders/procurement-policy-by-law

25. Review of Proposals

- (1) All Proposals submitted by the Closing Time of the RFP will be examined by a representative of the City's Procurement Section to confirm that they are compliant and otherwise complete, subject to the City's exercise of any right or privilege contained in this RFP. Proposals which are complete and compliant will be evaluated in accordance with the provisions of the RFP, subject to the City's exercise of any right or privilege contained in this RFP. The City reserves the right to examine the compliance and completeness of Proposals in phases.
- At its sole discretion, the City may clarify any aspect of any Proposal received at any time and, without limiting or restricting the foregoing general right in any way, the purpose of such clarification may be to enable the City to determine whether the Proposal complies with the RFP and to resolve any ambiguity in the language used, or any other vague or uncertain aspect of the Proposal. No such clarification shall alter the Proposal or constitute negotiation or re-negotiation of the price or any aspect thereof, or the nature or quality of the Goods or Services to be supplied or performed as set out in the Proposal at the close of the RFP, and all correspondence with a Proponent for the purposes of such clarification shall be conducted through the Procurement Section.

- (3) Where the lowest compliant Proposal contains an otherwise legible, clear and unambiguous change such as an erasure, strike out, white out, cross out or overwrite which has not been initialled, the Proponent will be required to initial such change within two Business Days of the City's request. Failure to comply with the City's request within the time line provided, will result in the rejection of the Proposal and the Proponent shall be a banned from entering into or bidding on any contracts with the City for a period of one year in accordance with the City's Procurement Policy.
- (4) Without limiting subsection (2), the City's right to clarify shall include the right to request additional information relating to the terms of the Proposal submitted.
- (5) The right of clarification provided under this section is within the sole, complete and unfettered discretion of the City and is for its exclusive benefit, and may or may not be exercised by the City at any time and in respect to any or all Proposals.
- (6) Notwithstanding the City's right to request clarification, the City shall have no obligation whatsoever to do so. Where in the opinion of the City a Proposal or any part thereof is ambiguous, incomplete, non-compliant, deficient, or otherwise not acceptable in any aspect, the City may reject such Proposal whether clarification has been sought, obtained or neither.
- (7) The City's review of a Proponent's submission with a Proponent or its seeking of clarification under this section shall not, in any way, be deemed to be an acceptance of any term or provision so clarified or be deemed to be an acknowledgement of the compliance of the Proposal with the terms of the RFP; shall not constitute an acceptance of that Proposal or any other Proponent or any other Proponent.
- (8) All clarifications provided by a Proponent pursuant to a request by the City under this section shall be in writing, in a clear and unambiguous form satisfactory to bind the Proponent, and satisfactory to the City.
- (9) Any Proponent may be required to meet with officials of the City within 30 days of being so requested to explain details of the submission, at a place in Hamilton specified by the City, and the Proponent shall bear all costs of its attendance and the attendance of any of its representatives at such meeting including but not limited to transportation to and from the meeting.

26. Rejection of Proposals by City

- (1) At its discretion, the City may (but shall not be obliged to) reject any Proposal that does not,
 - (a) comply with this RFP or any Addenda thereto; or

- (b) contain in full all information required by this RFP, including all Appendices and all Addenda thereto.
- (2) The City may reject any Proposal submitted by a Proponent or cancel any contract awarded to that Proponent without any compensation whatsoever payable to the Proponent, where:
 - (a) any information provided by the Proponent in its Proposal or as part of any pre-qualification procedure is determined by the City, in its sole opinion, to be false or otherwise misleading in any material respect; or
 - (b) where the Proponent's declaration in its Form of Proposal that it is in compliance with all City of Hamilton by-laws be untrue or incorrect, the City shall be entitled at its sole discretion to reject the Proponent's Proposal.

27. Guidelines Regarding Proposal Irregularities

As a guide to the Proponent, but without qualifying any rights and privileges reserved to the City, the Proponents Guidelines set out below is indicative of the manner in which discretion reserved by the City is to be exercised with respect to non-compliant Proposals. However, the City shall not be liable to any Proponent or other person where it elects to exercise a discretion, reserved privilege or right in a manner different from that indicated below.

PROPONENTS GUIDELINES				
IRREGULARITY		RESPONSE		
1.	Late Proposal	A late Proposal will not be accepted and will be returned unopened to the Proponent, at the Proponent's cost.		
2.	Unsealed Proposal.	An unsealed Proposal will not be accepted.		
3.	Form of Proposal not submitted in its entirety. Proposals not legible or in English.	Automatic rejection.		
4.	Submission not written in ink or other non- erasable medium.	Automatic rejection.		
5.	Form of Proposal is not signed.	Automatic rejection.		
6.	Form of Proposal signature is not an original (i.e. Proposal has only a photocopy of the Proponent's signature, not the original)	May provide original copy of requirements within two Business Days of the City's notification of the error, but no other change in the Proposal submission is permitted.		

PROPONENTS GUIDELINES				
IRREGULARITY		RESPONSE		
7.	Part Proposal: (a) all required sections in Form of Proposal not completed. (b) Unit Price Proposal:	Automatic rejection.		
	(i) Unit Price missing. (ii) Lump Sum Price missing. (c) Total Contract Price Proposal (i) Total Contract Price missing (ii) Provisional Item price missing	Automatic rejection. Automatic rejection. Automatic rejection. Automatic rejection.		
8.	Form of Proposal – Step 1 included in the Costing Proposal (within a separate envelope).	Proponent will be required to visit the Procurement Section office within two Business Days to remove the Form of Proposal – Step 1 pages from the Costing Proposal and reseal the envelope or may give written authorization for Procurement Manager to remove the Form of Proposal – Step 1.		
9.	Where the costing information, including the Form of Proposal Costing – Step 2, is to be submitted separately from the Technical Proposal Submission (i.e. in a separate envelope) but has been included in the Technical Proposal. (1) Where the costing information can: 1. be easily and physically removed from the Technical Proposal; and 2. where the removal does not change the Technical Proposal Submission in any way.	(1) Proponent will be required to visit the Procurement Section office within two Business Days to remove the costing information pages from the Technical Proposal and include the pages in the Costing Proposal envelope or may give written authorization for the Procurement Manager to remove applicable pages, enclose them in a separate Costing Proposal Envelope and are deemed to be compliant and waive their right to claim otherwise.		
	(2) Where the above removal conditions are not met.	(2) Automatic Rejection.		

PROPONENTS GUIDELINES			
IRREGULARITY		RESPONSE	
10.	Qualified or conditional Proposal (A Proposal restricted by a statement amending the RFP or alterations made to the RFP).	Automatic rejection unless the Request for Proposals specifically permit such qualification or condition.	
11.	Failure of Proponent to complete page totals or the summary page, or both, on the Form of Proposal.	The Proposal will not be rejected as these are for administrative purposes only.	
12.	A Proposal received on documents other than those documents supplied by the City in the Request for Proposals package.	Automatic rejection unless a Proposal is received on a true reproduction of the documents supplied by the City in the Request for Proposals package.	
13.	All erasures, changes, overwriting, whiteouts, cross outs or strikeouts which have not been initialed, but are otherwise legible, clear and unambiguous, regarding the following on the Form of Proposal: Unit Price or a Lump Sum Price in a Unit Price Proposal; and Total Contract Price or a Provisional Price in a Total Contract Price Proposal.	The lowest compliant Proponent will be required to provide the missing initials within two Business days of being requested to do so by the City. Failure to provide the missing initials will result in a rejection of the Proposal and a one year ban against the Proponent.	
14.	Proposal Security: Amount of Proposal Security provided by Proponent is insufficient, does not name correct Municipality as obligee, or no Proposal Security is provided or is not otherwise in compliance with the Request for Proposals requirements.	Automatic rejection.	
15.	Execution of Proposal bond: Corporate seal or original signature of Proponent, or both, are missing. Corporate seal or original signature of bonding company, or both, are missing.	Automatic rejection. Automatic rejection	
16.	Other irregularities.	An irregularity that goes beyond the scope of the Proponents Guidelines may be considered by the Procurement Manager.	

28. Brand Name

(1) Any reference to the trade name, brand name or catalogue number of a particular Manufacturer shall be understood to have been made solely for the purpose of establishing and describing general performance and quality levels of the item to be supplied, unless specified otherwise.

- (2) No reference to the trade name, brand name or catalogue number of a particular Manufacturer shall be construed to restrict Proponents to that Manufacturer, but Proposals shall be deemed to be invited for generic no-name equals and comparable equipment of any Manufacturer.
- (3) Despite subsection (2), if an item other than the one specified is proposed, it is the Proponent's responsibility to demonstrate that the product proposed meets the specifications identified in the Contract Documents, and the Proponent shall submit brochures and samples upon request and provide full specifications in detail on the item(s) proposed. The City shall be the sole judge (in its absolute discretion) as to whether an item bid meets its specifications.

29. Standard Warranty

- (1) The Successful Proponent shall promptly repair or replace, at no cost to the City, all defects in materials or workmanship of which the Successful Proponent has been properly notified within a period of one year from date of completion of the Project, Work or Supply.
- (2) This warranty shall not apply where a different warranty is specified in the Special Provisions, Description of Project, Work or Supply or an Addendum.

30. Security Clearance

(1) There are no security clearance requirements for this RFP.

31. Observance of Laws, Statutes and Regulations

The Successful Proponent shall comply with and conform to Laws applicable to the Services to be provided by, and the responsibilities and obligations of, the Successful Proponent under the Contract. Further, the Successful Proponent shall, at all times that the Contract is in effect and upon request of the City, provide proof of compliance satisfactory to the City, at the Successful Proponent's own cost.

32. General Contract Provisions

- (1) With respect to the RFP Documents,
 - (a) no modification, qualification, restriction or limitation whatsoever of any term, condition, covenant, warranty shall be permitted by any Proponent. The City reserves the right, in its absolute discretion, to modify any term, condition, covenant, warranty by express provision by the issuance of an Addendum or Addenda to that effect;
 - (b) all Proponents shall, by submitting a Proposal, be deemed to accept, without modification, qualification, restriction or limitation, all terms,

- conditions, covenants, warranties and any modifications to same by the City in any Addendum or Addenda; and
- (c) upon award of the Contract, the Successful Proponent shall be bound to all of the terms, conditions, covenants, warranties and any modifications to same by the City in any Addendum or Addenda.
- (2) The Proponent whose Proposal the City is recommending for the award of the Contract shall provide the insurance and security as required by the RFP Documents, within ten Business Days of the City's notification of such, and, in any event, prior to the commencement of the Services.

33. Insurance Requirements

- (1) Throughout the term of the Contract (including any renewal thereof), the Successful Proponent shall obtain and maintain at its own expense, including the cost of any applicable deductible, the following policies of insurance.
 - (a) Commercial General Liability Insurance, written on IBC Form 2100 or its equivalent, including but not limited to bodily injury and personal injury liability, property damage, products liability, completed operations liability, owners & contractors protective liability, blanket contractual liability, premises liability, broad form property damage, employer's liability and voluntary compensation and contingent employer's liability coverage, having an inclusive limit of not less than \$2,000,000 per occurrence and \$4,000,000 in the aggregate. Coverage shall be included for injury/loss/damage, due to pollution arising from "hostile fires". Policy shall be endorsed to **include the City of Hamilton as additional insured**.
 - (b) Standard Form Automobile Liability Insurance that complies with all requirements of the current legislation of the Province of Ontario, having an inclusive limit of not less than \$2,000,000 per occurrence for Third Party Liability, in respect of the use or operation of vehicles owned, operated or leased by the Successful Proponent for the provision of services;
 - (c) <u>Non-Owned Automobile Liability Insurance</u> in standard form having an inclusive limit of not less than \$2,000,000 per occurrence in respect of vehicles not owned by the Successful Proponent, that are used or operated on its behalf for the provision of services under the Contract;
 - (d) <u>Umbrella and/or Excess Liability Insurance</u> policies may be applied to increase liability limits. Certificate(s) of insurance must specify the underlying policies to which the umbrella/excess coverages apply and indicate any applicable aggregates.

- (2) The Successful Proponent shall maintain Property Insurance, as may be applicable, with respect to loss or damage (including fire, theft, burglary, etc.) of its own property and property in its care, custody and control, including but not limited to its equipment, tools, stock, used in connection with the Contract.
- (3) All polices of insurance within the scope of subsection (1) shall, subject to the terms of the indemnity provisions,
 - (a) be recorded as being a primary policy and shall be in a form and issued by an insurance company satisfactory to the City, that is licensed to carry on business in Ontario:
 - (b) show all values in Canadian Funds;
 - (c) be maintained continuously during the course of carrying out the Project, Work or Supply; or for such period of time as may be required after completion of the Project, Work or Supply, as deemed necessary by the City.
 - (d) identify all lines of insurance with a deductible greater than \$25,000. The City reserves the right to request proof of the successful proponent's ability to fund claims within their deductible amount
 - (e) except in the case of automobile liability insurance, non-owned automobile liability insurance, professional errors & omissions liability insurance, and medical malpractice liability insurance) include the City named as an additional insured, to the extent of the Successful Proponent's obligations to the City under the Contract Documents;
 - (f) contain cross liability and severability of interest provisions, as may be applicable;
 - (g) preclude subrogation claims against the City and any other person insured under the policy as may be applicable; and
 - (h) provide that at least 30 days prior written notice (15 days, in the case of automobile liability insurance, and 10 days in the event of non-payment of premiums) shall be given to the City by the Insurer before the Insurer or Successful Proponent takes any steps to cancel, terminate, fail to renew, amend or otherwise change or modify the insurance or any part thereof.
- (4) The City reserves the right to require the Successful Proponent to purchase such additional insurance coverage as the City's Risk Management Services Office may reasonably require. The City reserves the right to request such higher limits of insurance or otherwise alter the types of coverage requirements due to material or significant change arising from such matters as the nature of the work, contract value, industry standards, and availability of insurance) as the City may reasonably require from time to time.
- (5) Any insurance coverage acquired under the Contract shall in no manner discharge, restrict or limit the liabilities assumed by the Successful Proponent under the Contract. The dollar limit of insurance coverage shall not be limited by the dollar amount of the Contract.

(6) The Successful Proponent shall pay all premiums on the policies as they become due provided that the City may pay premiums as they become due and deduct the amount thereof from moneys due from the City to the Successful Proponent should the Successful Proponent fail to do so.

34. Proof of Insurance

- (1) The Successful Proponent shall deposit with the City such evidence of its insurance as provided in or required under the provisions of these Instructions, an Addendum or the Special Provisions,
 - (a) at the time of execution of the Contract, or
 - (b) in any event prior to commencing the Project, Work or Supply; or
 - (c) upon notification by the City of the recommendation of the Proponents' Proposal for the award of the Contract, and thereafter during the term of the Contract, no later than 20 Business Days prior to the renewal date of each applicable policy, the Successful Proponent shall deposit with the City's Procurement Manager an original Certificate of Insurance originally signed by an authorized insurance representative, confirming thereon relevant coverage information including but not limited to name/description of City contract, name of insurer, name of broker, name of insured, name of additional insureds as may be applicable, commencement and expiry dates of coverage, dollar limits of coverage, deductible levels as may be applicable, cancellation/termination provisions; or (at the City's election) a certified copy of the insurance policy or policies required under section 33 certificate holder will be addressed as the City of Hamilton, City Hall, 71 Main Street West, Hamilton, Ontario L8P 4Y5 attn. C11-39-15. All certificates, cancellation, nonrenewal or adverse change notices should be mailed to this address.
- (2) The Successful Proponent shall not do or omit to do anything that would impair or invalidate the insurance policies.
- (3) Delivery to and examination or approval by the City of any certificates of insurance or policies of insurance or other evidence of insurance shall not relieve the Successful Proponent of any of its indemnification or insurance obligations under the Contract. The City shall be under no duty either to ascertain the existence of or to examine such certificates of insurance or policies of insurance or to advise the Successful Proponent in the event such insurance coverage is not in compliance with the requirements set out in the Contract.

35. WSIB

(1) The Successful Proponent prior to commencing the Project, Work or Supply,

- (i) shall submit to the City an original Clearance Certificate from the Ontario Workplace Safety and Insurance Board and shall provide additional certificates with respect to such coverage as often as the City deems necessary during the term of the Contract to ensure continued good standing with the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board; or
- (j) furnish proof in a form satisfactory to the City from the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board that the Successful Proponent does not require Workplace Safety and Insurance Board insurance, but in such a case if the Successful Proponent changes its status during the term of the Contract so that such coverage is required, the Successful Proponent shall immediately provide the City with the certificate required under clause (a).
- (2) Where a substantial portion of the work to be done under the Contract is to be carried out by a Sub-Consultant, the City may require the Successful Proponent to furnish the same evidence as provided under subsection (1).

36. Non – Performance

The City reserves the right to determine of non-performance or poor quality of Services and/or Works and goods. The opinion of the City in this regard shall be final in all instances.

37. Indemnification

- (1) Subject to any indemnities provided in any executed agreement between the City and the Successful Proponent, the Successful Proponent shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City (including its officials, officers, directors, employees, agents, affiliates, and representatives) [collectively referred to as the "Indemnified Party"] harmless against any and all claims, demands, costs (including legal costs on a substantial indemnity basis), penalties, fines, fees, royalties, damages (including indirect, special, remote, and/or consequential damages) and causes of action, including, without limitation, proprietary or personal injury (including death) that arise from, either directly or indirectly, or relate to, any act or omission of the Successful Proponent, its officials, directors, officers, employees, agents, affiliates, partners (general or limited), joint venturers, contractors, Sub-Contractors, and other representatives, in connection with the Successful Proponent's responsibilities pursuant to this RFP and all Contract Documents, including without limitation, the provision of any and all Goods and Services, as well as any patent, trademark, or copyright infringement or breach of any intellectual property right, except to the extent that same was caused by the negligence or wilful misconduct of the Indemnified Party.
- (2) City shall notify the Successful Proponent upon receipt of any such claim or demand that it receives. No settlement shall be made nor consent to judgment

- given without prior written approval of Successful Proponent and its insurers, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- (3) The rights to indemnity contained herein shall survive the early termination or expiry of any Contract arising pursuant to this RFP.
- (4) The City may enforce the rights of indemnity conferred on the elected officials, officers, employees, and affiliates of the City under subsection (1) on their behalf and to the same extent as if they were parties to the Contract.
- (5) The rights to indemnity provided for in this section shall be deemed to be in addition to any rights with respect to insurance in favour of the Indemnified Party provided in the Contract Documents.

38. Patents and Copyrights

- (1) The Successful Proponent shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City from all and every claim for damages, royalties, or fees for the infringement of any patented invention or copyright occasioned by them in connection with work done or material furnished by them under the Contract.
- (2) No illegal commerce or gray market Goods shall be supplied to the City, and every person supplying Goods or Goods and Services to the City shall be deemed to have warranted that they are genuine and lawfully supplied.

39. Warranties of the Successful Proponent

Each Proponent shall be deemed to have expressly warranted upon the submission of its Proposal as follows:

(1) The Proponent:

- (a) if a corporation: is a duly incorporated, organized and subsisting corporation and has all requisite powers, capacities, authorities, permits, licences and permissions under its governing legislation and any other Laws applicable to it, and under its Articles of Incorporation and by-Laws under which it is organized, to carry on all businesses in which the Successful Proponent is engaged; and enter into, exercise its rights and perform and comply with its responsibilities and obligations under the Contract Documents; and that all actions, conditions and things have been done, taken or fulfilled with respect thereto, that are required by Law, contract or otherwise; or
- (b) if other than a corporation: is duly registered as a business under all applicable legislation, and as such has all requisite powers, capacities, permits, licences and permissions under its governing legislation and the other Laws applicable to it, to carry on all businesses in which the Successful Proponent is engaged; enter into, exercise its rights and

perform and comply with its obligations under the Contract Documents; and that all actions, conditions and things have been done, taken or fulfilled with respect thereto, that are required by Law, contract or otherwise.

- (2) The Proponent and its Sub-Consultants and the respective workforce of each are fully qualified to perform the Services and to perform the Contract and hold all requisite permits, licences, franchises and other authorizations required by this RFP, and by Law, contract and otherwise with respect thereto.
- (3) The Proponent is not a party to any Contract under the terms of which the Proponent is prohibited or restricted from entering into any of the obligations assumed, liabilities imposed, or restrictions accepted by the Successful Proponent under the Contract Documents.
- (4) To the best of the Proponent's information and belief and after making diligent inquiries,
 - (a) the information concerning the business, affairs and financial and other condition of the Proponent that are contained in all documents, memoranda, records, statements made, sent or given by the Proponent to the City prior to entering into the Contract, and in its current regulatory filings, are true and accurate in all material respects; and
 - (b) the Proponent is not aware of any material facts or circumstances having a bearing upon its ability to perform its obligations under the Contract which have not been disclosed to the City in writing.
- (5) The Proponent shall forthwith advise the City in writing in the event it becomes aware of any material fact or circumstance which may arise, at any time, that may have a bearing upon its ability to perform or assume its obligations under the Contract.

40. Covenants of each Proponent

In addition to its other responsibilities and obligations under the Contract, the Successful Proponent expressly agrees and covenants as follows:

- (1) The Successful Proponent shall
 - (a) perform all of the Services identified in the Terms of Reference, as well as all other Services identified or otherwise contemplated in the Contract Documents and provide all things necessary to perform same;
 - furnish all Services, labour, Goods, materials, equipment, facilities and all incidentals to undertake, perform and complete its undertakings, obligations and responsibilities;

- (c) pay all applicable Taxes (other than GST) and all other charges as specified, including payment of required fees under the WEEE Program; and
- (d) fully, properly, skilfully, diligently and in good faith undertake, perform and complete all of the Successful Proponent's duties, obligations and responsibilities under the Contract,

in full accordance with the Contract in a good professional manner, according to the best standards of practice of the industry, profession or trade in which the Successful Proponent carries on business (including any applicable standards of professional conduct) and with all due diligence.

- (2) The Successful Proponent shall employ properly qualified and experienced workers to carry out or Supply all Services or Work required under the Contract, and shall cause its Sub-Consultants to do the same.
- (3) The Successful Proponent shall have an adequate work force with proper equipment in good working condition, and shall have ready access to all materials, equipment and accessories required to perform its obligations under the Contract in a diligent and timely manner, and shall cause its Sub-Consultants to do the same.

41. Time for Completion

- (1) Subject to any Addendum, the occurrence of any Force Majeure or any executed agreement between the City and the Successful Proponent to the contrary, the Successful Proponent shall
 - (a) commence the provision of Services by the start date specified, or within the time provided in the Contract, and
 - (b) complete fully the provision of Services with due expediency and due diligence by the date specified in the Contract or otherwise as stipulated by the City.
- (2) Where a Force Majeure occurs, the City shall determine in its reasonable discretion the number of days (if any) to be allowed by reason thereof in accordance with the force majeure provisions of the RFP Documents. The Successful Proponent may propose a number of days to be allowed for this purpose which the City will consider but shall not be bound to. Where the City rejects the Proposal made by the Successful Proponent, it shall provide a written explanation for so doing.
- (3) The Successful Proponent shall prepare and submit to the City a Services and Work schedule that indicates the timing of the major activities relating to the Project and provides sufficient detail of the critical events and their inter-

- relationship to demonstrate the same will be performed in conformity within the time provided in subsection (1).
- (4) Where the Successful Proponent fails or neglects to commence or to proceed with the provision of Services diligently and at a rate of progress that in the opinion of the City will ensure entire completion within the time provided for in the Contract or fails to meets a time requirement provided for in the Contract, the City shall be entitled to recover from the Successful Proponent all losses, damages and expenses incurred by the City or may be incurred by the City by reason of such default by the Successful Proponent.

42. Time Is Of the Essence

Time is of the essence of this Contract and if the Successful Proponent fails to perform its obligations at the time fixed for performance under the terms of the Contract, the City may elect to terminate this Contract.

43. Delay

Without limiting any other rights or privileges of the City in the Contract with respect to delay, the Successful Proponent is not entitled to and releases and waives any rights to any remedies, damages (including special and consequential damages), expenses, costs (including legal costs), penalties or any other compensation, including any claims, actions or other legal proceedings, whether directly or indirectly related to any delays on the part of the City with respect to the following:

- (1) awarding of the Contract; and/or
- (2) providing notification to the Successful Proponent of award of the Contract; and/or
- (3) the commencement of the Successful Proponent's Services.

44. Modifications of Methods and Equipment

The Successful Proponent shall make such alterations in its methods, equipment and working forces, as the City in writing directs, without cost to the City, if at any time the methods or equipment or working force are found by the City to be: not in compliance with the requirements of the Contract; unsafe; or inadequate to ensure the protection, safety, or quality of the Services, Work or Project or to ensure a rate of progress sufficient in the reasonable opinion of the City to fully complete the Services or Work within the completion time required under the Contract or with due diligence.

45. Use of City Property and Character and Conduct of Employees

(1) Where any part of the Services is to be carried out on property owned or occupied by the City, the Successful Proponent shall,

- use that property and require its employees and Sub-Consultants to use that property, only for such purposes as are reasonably within the scope of the Contract;
- (b) refrain from committing waste on that property and use reasonable care to avoid causing any damage to any person or thing on that property or any neighbouring property;
- (c) employ only orderly, experienced and competent persons to perform work or Services; and
- (d) comply, and cause its agents, directors, officers, employees and Sub-Consultants to comply, with the City's zero tolerance of violence policy.
- (2) The Successful Proponent and its employees, agents, servants and Sub-Consultants shall neither bring onto nor allow the introduction or use of tobacco (except in strict compliance with the City's Smoking By-law), alcohol or illegal narcotics or controlled substances or any paraphernalia associated with any of these substances, upon any City property.
- (3) The Successful Proponent agrees to accept the Project site in its present condition and acknowledges and agrees that the City has not given any representation, warranty or condition, express or implied, in fact or by Law, as to the state, quality or condition in, on, or of the site, whether with respect to environmental matters or otherwise, or as to any other matter or thing, whether or not related to the foregoing. Furthermore, the Successful Proponent assumes any and all risks relating to the physical condition of the site. Neither the Successful Proponent nor any permitted occupant shall have any recourse to the City as a result of the nature or condition of the Project site, whether or not the City has or had actual or imputed knowledge of such nature and condition as at the Contract commencement date or at any other time during the term of the Contract.

46. Conflict of Interest, etc.

- (1) In performing the duties, providing advice and exercising all other rights and discretion associated with its role as a contractor, the Successful Proponent shall.
 - (a) act diligently, honestly and in good faith and in the best interests of the City;
 - (b) to the best of its ability make every effort to promote the interests and reputation of the City; and
 - (c) to the best of its ability assist the City in achieving its objectives and goals.
- (2) The Successful Proponent shall act ethically and fairly in all of its dealings with the City and all elected officials, officers, employees and Independent

- Consultants of the City, and co-operate with them in respect of the discharge of their duties to the City.
- (3) In performing any Services for or on behalf of the City, the Successful Proponent shall act in strict compliance with all applicable Laws and conform to the rules of conduct and performance of any trade association or professional regulatory body of which the Successful Proponent is a member or which otherwise governs the provision of such kind of Services.
- (4) The Successful Proponent shall not act in any case where there may be any conflict of interest between it (or any of its directors, officers, employees) and the City. The Successful Proponent shall notify the City of and fully disclose to the City, in writing and immediately upon same becoming known to the Successful Proponent, any potential or actual conflict of interest that may arise or has arisen prior to the execution of this Contract or during the performance of its duties under the Contract.
- (5) If the City determines that a conflict of interest exists, the City may, at its sole discretion, suspend or defer the Work and/or the Services until the conflict is removed to the satisfaction of the City or terminate the Services of the Successful Proponent. If, during the course of the Work and/or the provision of Services, the Successful Proponent is retained by another client for a new assignment, giving rise to a potential conflict of interest, then the Successful Proponent shall so inform the Project Manager immediately. If the Project Manager determines that a conflict of interest exists, the Successful Proponent shall refuse the new assignment or shall take such steps as are necessary to remove the conflict of interest and, where the Successful Proponent fails to do this within a reasonable time, the City may terminate the Services of the Successful Proponent. The Successful Proponent shall be responsible and indemnify the City for all of the City's costs, expenses, losses and damages whatsoever which may be incurred or arise as a result of the Successful Proponent's breach of its obligations herein including but not limited to all costs incurred to replace the Services of the Successful Proponent, all delay costs, legal and other professional service costs, and lost revenue and opportunities.
- (6) Without limiting the foregoing provisions, except with the prior written consent of the City,
 - (a) the Successful Proponent shall not act on behalf of the City with respect to any issue or in connection with any property in which the Successful Proponent or any director, officer or employee of the Successful Proponent has a direct or indirect pecuniary interest, including any contingent interest;
 - (b) before accepting any retainer to act on behalf of the City, the Successful Proponent shall exercise reasonable due diligence to confirm that there is no conflict of interest within the contemplation of this section;

- (c) the Successful Proponent shall accept no commission, gratuity or other payment of any kind from any person, other than the City's payment for Services in accordance with the Contract, in respect of its performance or intended performance, duties or exercise or intended exercise of any influence, power or discretion associated with its provision of consulting Services to the City; and
- (d) within two years of the date of providing the City with site specific advice or otherwise performing consulting Services on behalf of the City relating to any identifiable piece of land within the City (or any building or structure upon such land), the Successful Proponent shall not enter into any Contract with any other person under which the Successful Proponent or any director, officer, employee or nominee of the Successful Proponent may acquire any interest in that land (or building or structure).
- (7) This section shall apply to all Sub-Consultants of the Successful Proponent with necessary modifications.

47. Assignment and Sub-Consulting

Without limiting or restricting any other obligation or responsibility of the Successful Proponent under the Contract:

- (1) It shall be the Successful Proponent's responsibility to co-ordinate, control and check the Services or Work of its own forces and of all its Sub-Consultants and to ascertain that all Work and Services are performed in accordance with all Contract, governing regulations and the general standards of good commercial practice and professionalism as understood in Ontario, assuring only first class workmanship, and using only proper materials and methods as are suited to the function and performance intended.
- (2) The Successful Proponent shall be responsible for faithful and proper performance of the Contract.
- (3) Neither the City nor the Project Manager shall be construed to have any contractual relationship with any of the Successful Proponent's employees or Sub-Consultants.
- (4) No sub-contracting by the Successful Proponent shall relieve the Successful Proponent of any responsibility for the full performance of all obligations of the Successful Proponent under the Contract. Notwithstanding the approval of any Sub-Contractors by the City, the Successful Proponent shall be fully responsible for every Sub-Contractor's activities, works, Services and acts or omissions and shall either, in person or through an accredited agent, receive all notices, communications, orders, directions, instructions or legal services as if the Successful Proponent were performing the sub-contracted portion of the Services with its own resources.

- (5) (a) The City of Hamilton's Barrier Free Design Guidelines 2006, as amended from time to time, shall be incorporated into all newly constructed, renovated and retrofitted buildings owned, leased or funded (partially or fully) by the City of Hamilton. Compliance is a condition upon which Site Plan approval and building permit will be issued. These Standards are to be used as minimum requirements to the design and construction of new and renovated buildings, parks, and facilities within the City of Hamilton. The prime Consultant shall comply with the Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 32, and Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities 2005, as amended, in the performance of its Services.
 - (b) Where minimum accessibility standards in the Ontario Building Code exceed the standards set out in the:
 - (i) City of Hamilton's Barrier Free Design Guidelines; and
 - (ii) Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 32; and
 - (iii) Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities 2005,

The requirements of the *Ontario Building Code* will take precedent and apply.

(6) Without limiting the foregoing, the Successful Proponent shall be responsible for complying with the <u>Occupational Health and Safety Act</u> (OHSA) throughout the term of the Contract and the City shall in no way be considered the constructor with respect to any part of the Project or Services for the purposes of the OHSA.

48. Project Identification

The Successful Proponent shall not use the City's logo or other insignia identifiable with the City without the prior written approval of the City.

49. Liens to Be Discharged

The Successful Proponent shall pay punctually all amounts owing to its suppliers in respect of all services and materials supplied by them with respect to the Contract, including any applicable interest, taxes, costs and other charges, and shall forthwith cause every lien preserved or perfected by any person with respect to the Contract or the subject matter of the Contract to be vacated or discharged, and as between the Successful Proponent and City all costs relating thereto shall be paid by the Successful Proponent and shall be at its expense.

50. Ownership of Documents, Use of Designs, etc.

(1) All maps, drawings, plans, specifications, computer disks and other documents,

- (a) provided by the City to a Proponent shall remain the property of the City and shall be returned by the Proponent to the City (whether or not the Proponent submits a Proposal) upon demand by the City for their return; or
- (b) prepared by the Proponent as part of its Proposal shall be the property of the City and may be disposed of by the City as it considers fit.
- (2) Unless the City otherwise agrees in writing, where any plan, drawing or design is provided by a Proponent in connection with an RFP, then the submission of a Proposal by the Proponent shall be deemed to constitute a licence by that Proponent to construct one sample model of the work or project contemplated based upon that plan, drawing or design, where such a sample is required to make an informed decision concerning the attractiveness, functionality or other merit of the plan, drawing or design in question. The licence conferred herein shall not be deemed to constitute an assignment of any patent, copyright, trade mark or other intellectual property of the Proponent, unless otherwise provided in the RFP.

51. Deviation from Contract Documents and "Good Practice"

- (1) The Successful Proponent shall not deviate from the Contract without the prior consent of the City in writing.
- (2) The Successful Proponent covenants that it shall inspect, and shall cause all of its Sub-Consultants to do so as well, all elements, parts, items or surfaces affecting or involving their work and inform the City immediately, in writing, of any and all deviations from the drawings and specifications approved by the City and/or from accepted good practice and standards involving or affecting their work. Without limiting the Successful Proponent's obligations and responsibilities under the Contract, neither the Successful Proponent nor any of its Sub-Consultants shall proceed with their work if these deviations will influence or affect the appearance or quality of their work or any aspect of the Project until same are corrected by the Successful Proponent. The Successful Proponent shall bear the cost of any delay caused by a deviation by it or any of its Sub-Consultants from the Contract or any accepted practice or standard required under the Contract, without the prior consent of the City. Nothing herein shall alter or derogate from the responsibility of the Successful Proponent under the Contract.

52. Successful Proponent's Default and City's Remedies

(1) The provisions of this section are in addition to any other rights, privileges and remedies to which the City is entitled by Law, in equity or otherwise in the Contract.

- (2) The following shall constitute, without limitation, Acts or Events of Default ("Default") by the Successful Proponent (including any of its employees, officers, agents, partners or any other representative performing Work or Services pursuant to, or otherwise connected with, the subject matter of the Contract Documents:
 - (a) where the Successful Proponent fails or neglects to commence or to proceed with the provision of Services diligently and at a rate of progress that in the opinion of the City will ensure entire completion within the time provided for in the Contract;
 - (b) where the City determines reasonably that the Successful Proponent has abandoned its duties with respect to the Project or failed to observe and perform any of the provisions of the Contract, the determination of which the City shall be the sole judge;
 - (c) where the Successful Proponent publicly disparages the City, its Councillors and/or its officers, directors or employees;
 - (d) where the Successful Proponent has made any material misrepresentation with respect to the Contract;
 - (e) where the Successful Proponent fails to prosecute the Services with the required skill and diligence;
 - (f) where the Successful Proponent fails to comply with and maintain in good standing any insurance policies, professional certificates, permits, licences or approvals required by the Contract or commits any acts or omissions that jeopardizes or may jeopardize these policies, permits, licences or approvals;
 - (g) where the Successful Proponent fails to comply with or observe or perform, or breaches or violates, any provision, term, covenant, warranty, condition, responsibility and/or obligation of the Contract;
 - (h) where the Successful Proponent fails to comply with any Law;
 - (i) where the Successful Proponent fails to comply with any instruction or direction of the City;
 - (j) where the Successful Proponent sub-consults or sub-contracts the whole or any part of the Contract or the Services or makes an assignment of the Contract or the Services thereunder or any part thereof, without the prior written consent of the City;
 - (k) where the Successful Proponent defaults in the completion of the Services within the time limit under the Contract or within a City-extended time limit;

- (I) subject to section 15 Performance Review of these Instructions to Proponents, where the Successful Proponent fails or refuses to correct, rectify or remedy any unsatisfactory or defective Services when so ordered by the City in writing;
- (m) subject to section 15 Performance Review of these Instructions to Proponents, where the Successful Proponent fails to correct, rectify or remedy a deficiency or fails to desist from a violation of any of the provisions of the Contract after receiving written notice from the City to do so;
- (n) where a lien arises with respect to the Services undertaken by the Successful Proponent under this Contract and remains unpaid by the Successful Proponent after demand to pay therefore, unless vacated or discharged and released by payment into a court of competent jurisdiction or otherwise, within five Business Days of such demand, save and except a valid lien of the Successful Proponent registered against the property affected by this Contract;
- where any of the goods, chattels or effects of the Successful Proponent (o) shall at any time during the term of the Contract be seized or taken in execution of attachment; or if a writ of execution shall be issued against the goods, chattels or effects of the Successful Proponent; or if the Successful Proponent shall make any assignment for the benefit of creditors; or if the Successful Proponent shall be adjudged bankrupt or insolvent, commit any act of bankruptcy or insolvency or make any Proposal under or take advantage of any of the provisions of any act or statutes whatsoever that may be in force regarding bankrupt or insolvent debtors or debtors who are not able to or do not pay their debts promptly and in full; or if a receiving order or winding up order shall be made against or in respect of the Successful Proponent; or if any actions or proceedings shall be taken to wind up, dissolve or liquidate the Successful Proponent or its assets by, against or in respect of the Successful Proponent; or where a resolution is passed or any other act undertaken for the winding up of the Successful Proponent; or a receiver, manager or trustee is appointed in respect of the business or assets of the Successful Proponent, or any part of thereof, by a court of competent jurisdiction, or under any contract;
- (p) where the Successful Proponent ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business, or where the Successful Proponent makes or agrees to make a bulk sale of its assets; or defaults in payment of any indebtedness or liability to a Bank or other lending institution, whether secured or not.
- (3) Without restricting, limiting, precluding or otherwise prejudicing any other right, privilege or remedy of the City provided in the Contract or by Law or in equity, in the event that the Successful Proponent has committed an Act of Default or an

Event of Default has occurred, the City may provide written notice ("Default Notice") to the Successful Proponent to the effect that if the Successful Proponent does not completely remedy the Default to the satisfaction of the City within five Business Days of delivery of the Default Notice, or such other period of time as may be specifically provided for under the Contract or otherwise granted by the City in writing, in its absolute discretion, then the City may terminate the Contract and/or the Services of the Successful Proponent immediately.

- (4) Notwithstanding subsection (3) and without prejudice to or foregoing any other right, privilege or remedy of the City, in the event that emergency Work and/or Services is/are necessitated as a result of the Default of the Successful Proponent, such Work and/or Services may be undertaken immediately, without notice, by the City and all reasonable costs, expenses and expenditures of the City of such emergency Work and/or Services shall be borne by the Successful Proponent and payable forthwith upon written demand by the City, with particulars of the emergency and Work and/or Services necessitated thereby, and the City shall have no liability to the Successful Proponent for any loss or damage whatsoever resulting from such action by the City.
- (5) If the Default is not completely remedied to the satisfaction of the City in accordance with subsection (3), the City may terminate the Contract immediately and enforce any performance bond, letter of credit or other performance security provided by the Successful Proponent (where applicable).
- (6) A waiver of a Default shall not extend to, or be taken in any manner whatsoever to affect the rights of the City with respect to any subsequent default, whether similar or not.
- (7) The remedies provided in these Instructions to Proponents are in addition to all other legal, equitable or statutory remedies to which the City is otherwise entitled, as well as any other remedies stipulated in the Contract, and the taking of any one remedy shall not preclude the taking of any other remedy.
- (8) If the City terminates the Contract as a result of an Act or Event of Default, in addition to any other rights, privileges and remedies it is entitled to, the City may:
 - (a) take possession of all of the work in progress, Supplies, Goods, materials and equipment then at the Project site (at no additional charge for the retention or use of the equipment), and complete the Services by whatever means the City may deem appropriate under the circumstances;
 - (b) withhold any further payments to the Successful Proponent until the completion of the Services and the expiry of all obligations; and
 - (c) recover from the Successful Proponent loss, damage and expense incurred by the City or may be incurred by the City by reason of the Successful Proponent's default (which may be deducted from any monies

- due or becoming due to the Successful Proponent, with any balance remaining to be paid by the Successful Proponent to the City).
- (9) All costs, expenses and expenditures of the City herein shall be deemed an additional charge due to the City and shall be paid by the Successful Proponent upon demand and, if not so paid, shall bear interest at the Canadian Prime Interest Rate plus five percent (5%) calculated from the time the funds were due and payable to the City. "Canadian Prime Interest Rate" means the rate of interest publicly quoted from time to time by the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce as its prime rate for Canadian dollar commercial loans made at its main branch in Toronto Ontario, or the corresponding rate of such other Canadian chartered bank as the City of Hamilton may designate from time to time.
- (10) Unless the City otherwise agrees in writing and without limiting any other provision of this section, the failure, refusal or neglect by the Successful Proponent to deliver the Services in a diligent manner within the time specified or to promptly replace, remedy or correct the Successful Proponent's performance and/or Services as required pursuant to the Contract (when that originally supplied is rejected as unsatisfactory, unacceptable or deficient) shall be deemed to constitute an authority for the City to purchase and/or replace the Services in question on the open market. The Successful Proponent shall forthwith reimburse the City for all of its extra costs and expenses incurred to purchase and/or replace such Services, and the City's internal costs and any delay costs.

53. Information to be Kept Confidential

- (1) Confidentiality of records and information of the City relating to this Project must be maintained at all times. All documentation and communications, written and verbal, related to this Project and the Contract, whether provided by the City or on the City's behalf or otherwise is deemed confidential unless expressly provided otherwise. All correspondence, documentation and information provided by City and the City's Representatives to the Successful Proponent in connection with, or arising out of this Contract remains the property of the City; must be treated as confidential; and must not be used for any purpose other than for fulfillment of this Contract. Throughout the term of the Contract and thereafter, the Successful Proponent shall safeguard all information provided by the City and the City's Representatives and any other person at the request of the City, to the Successful Proponent or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives and, in particular, the Successful Proponent shall
 - (a) maintain in strict confidence all information concerning the City, its employees, representatives, Independent Consultants, residents or any other person that comes to it by reason of acting as a Successful Proponent to the City,

- not reproduce or disclose any such information to any person except as required by Law or as expressly permitted in advance by the City in writing,
- (c) return forthwith and without demand all such information as may be in documentary form or recorded electronically upon the termination of its Services as a Successful Proponent,
- (d) not use any of the information, within the scope of this section, for any other purpose other than the purpose for which it was provided by the City or by any other person at the request of the City,
- (e) not divulge or disclose any confidential information communicated to or acquired by it in the course of carrying out the Services provided for herein, except as may be required by Law or as expressly permitted in advance by the City in writing, and
- (f) not use any of the information, within the scope of this section, on any other project without the prior written approval of the City.
- This Contract is subject to the *Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act* ("MFIPPA") and *Personal Health Information Protection Act* ("PHIPA") as well as the City's obligations thereunder. The Successful Proponent shall strictly comply with the requirements of such legislation as well as the *Personal Information Protection and* Electronic Documents Act, 2000, c. 5. The Successful Proponent shall protect all personal and confidential information of the City and the City's Representatives, together with that of any person required by the foregoing Acts, and shall not deposit, store or hold any such information in such a manner that it is subject to seizure or disclosure under the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism (USA Patriot Act) Act of 2001, as amended, in contravention of the provisions of MFIPPA, PHIPA or any other applicable Canadian privacy legislation.
- (3) All correspondence, documentation and information provided to the City and/or the City's Representatives by the Successful Proponent in connection with, or arising out of this Contract, will become the property of the City and a record of the City. The foregoing records and the Contract are subject to the provisions of the MFIPPA and PHIPA and the City's obligations thereunder and may be released pursuant to such Acts. Subject to foregoing, the City will use its best efforts not to disclose any information marked as confidential but shall not be liable in any manner to a Proponent or any other person where information is disclosed by virtue of an order of the Privacy Commissioner, a court of competent jurisdiction or otherwise as required by Law. The City further makes no representations or warranties that the identification of a document as confidential will prevent its release under the provisions of MFIPPA, PHIPA or otherwise under Law.

54. Non-disclosure and No Comment

- (1) The Successful Proponent shall not disclose, distribute, publish or issue any information, details or document concerning any aspect of this Contract, the Contract Documents, the Project and Services to a third party except:
 - (a) where prior written authorization or consent of the City has been provided by the City, which consent may be unreasonably withheld by the City in its unfettered discretion; or
 - (b) where such disclosure, distribution, publication or issuance is necessary to perform the Services, is only to a person directly engaged in performing Services or work under the Contract and is only to the extent required for the Services or work to be performed; or
 - (c) is required to be disclosed by Law.
- (2) The Successful Proponent shall restrain its employees and Sub-Consultants from giving unauthorized information or otherwise contravening this section.
- (3) After the Contract is awarded, the Successful Proponent shall refer all inquiries from all third parties not involved in carrying out the Contract that relate to the Contract or the Project, Work or Supply to be undertaken within the scope of the Contract to the City's Procurement Manager.

55. Information Provided by City

Unless expressly provided otherwise in the Contract, all information supplied by the City or on behalf of the City to the Successful Proponent for purposes of performing its Services in connection with the Project shall be provided solely for information purposes and does not form part of this Contract. The information is not guaranteed or warranted to be accurate by the City, nor is it necessarily comprehensive or exhaustive. The City accepts no responsibility for and/or liability with respect to the completeness and accuracy of such information. The Successful Proponent shall take all steps that it deems appropriate to satisfy itself of the accuracy of any such information and shall not make any claim against the City because of any error or inaccuracy that might exist in such information.

56. Copyright and Use of Documents

The Total Contract Price shall include all payments made or to be made to any third party in respect of any right, patent, design, trademark or copyright used for the purpose of the Successful Proponent performing the Contract.

57. Governing Law

This Contract shall be governed by, subject to and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada, as applicable to the matters herein. Unless the City otherwise agrees in writing, any action or other legal proceeding arising under or with respect to the Contract (including any motion or other interlocutory proceeding) shall be brought in a Court or a tribunal, whichever may be applicable, sitting in Hamilton, Ontario. In the event that there is no applicable Court or tribunal sitting in Hamilton, the proceeding shall be brought in the court (or other forum) of competent jurisdiction nearest to the City of Hamilton within the Province of Ontario.

58. Severance Where Provision Illegal, etc.

If any provision or provisions of this Contract or parts thereof or any of the Contract Documents or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be found is/are found to be invalid, unenforceable or void by any court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such provision or provisions or parts thereof shall be deemed severable and all other provision or provisions or parts of this Contract shall be deemed to be separate and independent therefrom and continue in full force and effect unless and until similarly found void and/or unenforceable. The remaining terms and provisions of the Contract and its application to any person or circumstances shall not be affected thereby, but this provision shall apply only insofar as the effect of that severance is not to change the fundamental nature of the obligations assumed respectively by each of the City and Successful Proponent.

59. Contract Non Exclusive

Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Contract Documents, no contract shall be deemed or construed to confer upon the Successful Proponent an exclusive right to supply those Services to the City for the Project or otherwise.

60. Accrued Rights and Remedies

Neither the expiration nor the termination of this Contract shall prejudice or affect any right of action, privilege or remedy which shall have accrued or shall thereafter accrue to the City.

61. Excessive Claims

(1) The City may review and disallow an invoice, or reduce the amount of an invoice, submitted for hourly labour costs, or for material supplied, where the City's Procurement Manager concludes on reasonable grounds that the amount of that invoice is excessive, taking into account the time and materials that would ordinarily be required by a competent professional or tradesman to carry out the Work or Project to which the invoice relates.

- (2) Prior to disallowing or reducing an invoice under subsection (1), the City shall notify the Successful Proponent in writing of its intention to review the invoice in question, and shall allow the Successful Proponent to make written or oral representations to the City's Procurement Manager as to whether the amount invoiced is excessive. The Procurement Manager shall take those representations and all other relevant facts into account before reaching any conclusion under subsection (1). Any decision made by the Procurement Manager under this section is final and conclusive between the parties.
- (3) No invoice shall be disallowed under this section where the billing to which it relates is in strict accord with the terms of the Contract Documents.

62. Force Majeure

- (1) In this section, "Force Majeure" means a delay in the performance of the Services occurring other than as a result of the deliberate act or negligence of either party respectively, and which
 - (a) could not have been reasonably foreseen, and
 - (b) was caused by an event beyond the reasonable control of each party respectively,

and for the sake of greater certainty shall include any one or more of the following:

- (a) acts of God, the Queen or Her enemies;
- (b) civil war; insurrections or riots;
- (c) fires; floods; explosions; earthquakes or serious major accidents;
- (d) unusually severe weather; epidemics or quarantine restrictions;
- (e) governmental priorities or allocation regulations or orders affecting materials, labour, equipment and facilities;
- (f) fuel shortages or freight embargoes; or
- (g) strikes or labour troubles causing cessation, slowdown or interruption of work or other similar events relating to a person other than the Successful Proponent (or any Sub-Consultant).
- (2) In the event of the occurrence of a Force Majeure,
 - (a) the time for completing that portion of the supply Services, or the completion of the Project to which the RFP relates, which has been

- delayed by reason of the Force Majeure shall be extended by a period equal to the delay so caused;
- (b) the date for the payment of any portion of the price or any costs or fees shall be adjusted accordingly, without adjustment of the price; and

but subject to the foregoing, each party shall be excused from performance so long as the Force Majeure persists, and shall not be considered to be in default under this section, if and to the extent that its failure of, or delay in performance is due to that Force Majeure.

- (3) Where a Force Majeure remains in effect for more than 90 days, either party may terminate the Contract upon 30 days written notice to the other party, provided at the time when that notice is given the Force Majeure is then continuing.
- (4) While a Force Majeure subsists which prevents the Successful Proponent from performing its Services with respect to the Project, the City may engage another consultant or supplier to perform those obligations on an interim basis.

63. Successors and Assigns

- (1) This Contract and all terms, covenants, conditions and provisions herein shall be binding upon and shall enure to the benefit of the City and the Successful Proponent and their respective permitted assigns, successors and legal representatives.
- (2) The Successful Proponent shall not assign, transfer or encumber in any manner or part this Contract without the prior written consent of the City. Any attempt to assign, transfer or encumber any of the rights, duties or obligations of this Contract without such consent of the City is void. The Successful Proponent shall not sub-contract this Contract or any part thereof to a third party or undergo a change in effective voting control (if the Successful Proponent is a corporation), without the prior written consent of the City. The Successful Proponent shall not change any approved Sub-Consultant without the prior written consent of the City. The Successful Proponent shall not change any approved Design Project Leader without the prior written consent of the City. No assignment, subconsulting or sub-contracting shall, in any circumstances, relieve the Successful Proponent of its responsibilities, obligations and liabilities under the Contract.
- (3) It shall be a condition precedent of any approval or consent granted by the City, pursuant to this section, that the Successful Proponent shall be responsible for all costs of the City to investigate and consider a proposed Sub-Consultant or proposed assignee including but not limited to the City's internal staff costs and all legal, financial and consultant costs. Such costs shall be payable by the Successful Proponent regardless of whether an approval or consent is granted or not. No approval of the City shall be effective until the Successful Proponent has first paid to the City its costs with respect to same. Any delay in the

commencement of the Services or in the performance of the Services or the Successful Proponent's obligations under the Contract related to or arising from the City's consideration of the Successful Proponent's request for a Sub-Consultant change or assignment shall be solely borne by the Successful Proponent.

64. Accommodations for Proponents with Disabilities

- (1) In accordance with the Ontario Human Rights Code, Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001 (ODA) and Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA), the City of Hamilton will accommodate for a disability, ensuring full and equitable participation throughout the bid process.
- (2) If a Proponent requires this Request for Proposals in a different format to accommodate a disability, the Proponent must contact the Procurement Specialist as soon as possible and in any event prior to the closing date. The Request for Proposals in the different format will be issued only to the requesting Proponent and all Addenda will be issued in such different format only to the requesting Proponent.

65. Ontarians With Disabilities Act, 2001 (ODA) and the Accessibility For Ontarians With Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA)

- (1) The Successful Proponent shall ensure that all of its employees, agents, volunteers and any Sub-Contractors comply with all applicable accessibility laws, regulations and by-laws, including but not limited to the Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001 (ODA), the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA), Ontario Regulation 429/07 (Accessibility Standards for Customer Service) and Ontario Regulation 191/11 (Integrated Accessibility Standards), during the term of the Contract.
- (2) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Successful Proponent shall ensure that all of its employees, agents, volunteers and any Sub-Contractors who, as part of the Contract:
 - (a) deal with members of the public or other third parties, or
 - (b) participate in developing policies, practices and procedures governing the provision of goods or services to members of the public or other third parties,

receive training about the provision of its goods or services to persons with disabilities. The Successful Proponent shall ensure that such training includes, without limitation, a review of the purposes of the AODA and the requirements of Ontario Regulation 429/07.

- (3) Prior to commencing Work, the Successful Proponent shall provide a Statement of Acknowledgement to the City that it has read and understands the City's AODA Customer Service Standard Handbook; that it has provided the training required by said Handbook; and that it will comply with the requirements of said Handbook and applicable accessibility laws, regulations and by-laws.
- (4) The City reserves the right to inspect the Successful Proponent's training records relating to Ontario Regulation 429/07 and Ontario Regulation 191/11, which must describe its training policy and summarize the training, including to whom the training has been given and when the training was given. The City also reserves the right to require the Successful Proponent to amend its training policies, practices and procedures if the City deems the training is not compliant with the requirements of Ontario Regulation 429/07 and Ontario Regulation 191/11.
- (5) See City of Hamilton's AODA Customer Service Standard Handbook at: hamilton.ca/government-information/accessibility-services/accessibility-standards

66. Set-off

The parties agree that the City has the contractual right to set-off against any amounts owing by the City to the Successful Proponent under this Contract, any amount owed to the City by the Successful Proponent, whether such amount arises from this Contract or under any other contract between the City and the Successful Proponent, irrespective of whether or not those contracts are related or arise at equity or law.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. AWARD OF CONTRACT

Subject to the City's reserved rights and privileges set out in the Proposal, the Contract shall be awarded to the compliant Proponent who has:

- i) Met the Benchmark as set out in Table 1 Criteria for the Evaluation of Proposals, and
- ii) With the lowest Total Contract Price in Step 2 Form of Proposal Cost Proposal.

If there is a tie, then the following tie-breaking measure will be used to select the Successful Proponent.

- i. The Proposal with the highest overall points, and if still tied,
- ii. The Proposal with the highest points for Table 1 Criteria for the Evaluation of Proposals, 4. Inspection Equipment to be Used.

2. TERM OF THE CONTRACT

The term of the Contract shall be for a one-year period ("Term One") which will commence upon the City's notification of Contract award to the Successful Proponent.

The term of the Contract may be extended by the City for a maximum four additional, one-year terms ("Term Two", "Term Three", "Term Four", and "Term Five") at the sole discretion of the City.

There is no obligation on the City to extend the Contract. Should the City decide to extend the Contract, such extension shall be on the same terms and conditions of the original Contract(s) including price.

The estimated Term of the Contract dates shall be as follows:

Term One August 1, 2015 to July 31, 2016

Optional renewals terms, if exercised, shall be as follows:

Term Two August 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017
Term Three August 1, 2017 to July 31, 2018
Term Four August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2019
Term Five August 1, 2019 to July 31, 2020

3. QUANTITIES

The estimated quantities to be Supplied under the Contract are set out on the Form of Proposal – Cost Proposal – (Step 2) and shall be used as the basis for calculation upon which the award of the Contract will be made. The actual amount paid to the Successful Proponent will be the Unit Price multiplied by the actual quantities of such Goods and Services supplied during the course of the Contract.

The Successful Proponent shall have no claim for any compensation against the City of Hamilton if the Successful Proponent's actual quantities of services completed are above or below the estimated quantities provided in the Form of Proposal – Cost Proposal – (Step 2).

4. PRICES

4.1 UNIT PRICES

Unit Prices shall be all inclusive, and shall include, without limitation: all labour, material, equipment, any service fees, transportation, delivery charges, expenses, allowances, charges and any taxes exclusive of Value Added Taxes.

No overtime premiums of any kind shall be invoiced by the Successful Proponent or payment processed by the City and only Unit Prices Bid on the Form of Proposal – Schedule of Quantities and Prices shall be invoiced by the Successful Proponent. Any overtime work must be pre-approved by the Project Manager in writing.

4.2 PRICE INCREASES

If, on the renewal term of the Contract, a price increase is contemplated by the Successful Proponent, all Unit Prices payable under the Contract during the term of the renewal shall be deemed to be adjusted only to reflect the average annual increase in the Consumer Price Index as published by Statistics Canada over the 12 month period immediately preceding the date of renewal. Reference link listed: http://www.statcan.gc.ca/tables-tableaux/sum-som/l01/cst01/cpis01g-eng.htm. If this site discontinues publishing these statistics, the City will provide an alternate relevant link for the basis of an adjustment.

The Successful Proponent shall provide supporting documentation (a printout of the Consumer Prices Index) that clearly shows the increase in the Consumer Prices Index, and shall do so at least 90 days prior to the commencement of the renewal term option.

Any price increases require prior approval of the City.

Pricing for Terms Two, Three, Four and Five will be determined by applying the annual Consumer Price Index (CPI) differential for the 'all items' category for Ontario to the Unit Price stipulated in the Form of Proposal – Cost Proposal - Schedule of Quantities and Prices. The annual CPI differential shall be calculated based on the start and end date of the previous Term of the contract.

For example:

Term Two pricing = (CPI differential x Term One Unit Price) + Term One Unit Price

Where; CPI = CPI for the 'all items' category for Ontario

X = CPI value on first month of Term One Y = CPI value on the last month of Term One

CPI differential = (Y - X) / X

5. ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS

"ATV" means All Terrain Vehicle.

"CCTV" means Closed Circuit Television.

"GPS" means Global Positioning System.

"HSR" means Hamilton Street Railway.

"MACP" means Manhole Assessment and Certification Program.

"MH" means Manhole.

"NASSCO" means National Association of Sewer Service Companies.

"PACP" means Pipeline Assessment and Certification Program.

PROPOSAL SUBMISSION INFORMATION

Contract Number: C11-39-15

Zoom Camera Inspection of Manholes and Sewers

1.0 GENERAL

All costs and expenses related to the preparation, submission and presentation, including interviews and demonstrations, of a Proposal and the provision of additional information necessary for the evaluation of a Proposal shall be at the sole expense of the Proponent.

Proposals will be evaluated by the Evaluation Team according to the criteria and requirements set out in this RFP. In submitting the Proposal, Proponents agree that the decision of the Evaluation Team is final and binding, and will not be subject to review by any court and any Proponent breaching this provision will indemnify the City for all its costs as a result of same, save and except where the City has acted in manifest bad faith.

The RFP shall not obligate or commit the City to award a contract.

2.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS STEP 1 – TECHNICAL PROPOSALS

2.1. General

- **2.1.1.** Proponents should submit six complete copies of the Technical Proposal (**one originally signed document**, and **five identical photocopies**). The City's Form of Proposal (Step 1) (yellow pages) must be completed in full and be included in the front of the Technical Proposal submission.
- **2.1.2.** The Technical Proposal and the Form of Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed package labeled "Step 1 Technical Proposal".
- **2.1.3.** The Technical Proposal shall be evaluated in Step 1. No details of costs or rates are to be included in this part of the Proposal.

2.2. Step 1 - Evaluation of Technical Proposals

2.2.1. During Step 1 of the evaluation process, all Proposals will be initially reviewed to determine compliance with the RFP requirements.

2.2.2. Any Proposal

- 2.2.2.1. not complying with the requirements of the RFP shall not be accorded any points or evaluated further, or
- 2.2.2.2. that fails to meet the required minimum score (if any) within an evaluation category may not be evaluated further,

subject to the exercise by the City, in its absolute discretion, of any right or privilege it may have in this RFP, including without limitation its right to waive irregularities. The City may exercise its rights and privileges under the RFP and reject a Proposal in accordance with same notwithstanding that it may be compliant with the remaining requirements of this RFP.

- 2.2.3. The Evaluation Team will evaluate compliant (or deemed compliant as a result of the waiver by the City of any non-compliance) Technical Proposals, which have not been rejected by the City in accordance with a right or privilege of the City, and assign points up to a maximum of 100 points. Proposals will be scored by consensus of the Evaluation Team. Proposals meeting or exceeding the Benchmark will proceed to Step 2.
- **2.2.4.** An initial determination of compliance (including deemed compliance at Step 1) shall not preclude a finding by the City of non-compliance at Step 2, particularly with respect to non-compliance with the requirements for the Form of Proposal Schedule of Quantities and Prices or any other discovered non-compliance with the RFP requirements.

2.3. Step 1 - Evaluation Criteria

- 2.3.1. The criteria in Table 1 will be used in the Step 1 evaluation. Proposal submissions must address these criteria in the identification and order protocol shown below. Not following this identification and order creates the risk to the Proponent that, even if the information has been provided, it may be overlooked and consequently not considered in evaluation of the Proponent's score.
- **2.3.2.** The following is a table listing the evaluation categories, indicating:
 - i) the maximum score attainable in each category; and
 - ii) the required minimum score per category (if any) that must be attained in order to proceed to Step 2 of the evaluation; and
 - iii) the overall minimum score that must be attained ("Benchmark") in order to proceed to Step 2 of the evaluation.

TABLE 1: Criteria for the Evaluation of Proposals

Evaluation Criteria	Minimum Score Required	Maximum Score Attainable					
1. Ability to Perform Work	40	50					
1.1 Similar Projects							
List no less than three to five past projects that best demonstrate relevant to zoom camera sewer and manhole inspections of similar size, scope, and nature that were completed during the last five consecutive years.							
Provide the clients' names, addresses and telephone numbers, contact persons, dates, locations, and approximate value of the work performed.							
The evaluation will be based on the extent to which these projects demonstrate the Proponent's ability to fulfil requirements and not on the number of projects listed.							
Provide a brief description of the work completed for each listed project including the Proponent's involvement in the project, the total number of manholes inspected, the number of manholes on-road and off-road, and any additional information which the Proponent believes will assist the City in evaluating past performance.							
If the Proponent has any similar <u>ongoing</u> projects, provide a list of these ongoing projects. Prior to completion of evaluation, the City may request the Proponent to facilitate a site visit for its representatives to any of the Proponent's ongoing projects selected by the City.							
Explain how the Proponent's experience and qualifications for each listed project demonstrates:							
1.1.1 The Proponent's ability to perform the Work on this Contract							
1.1.2 The Proponent's experience in zoom camera sewer inspections							
1.1.3 The Proponent's experience in detailed manhole inspections 1.1.4 The Proponent's ability to work cooperatively							

Evaluation Criteria	Minimum Score	Maximum Score
	Required	Attainable
with a client	•	
1.1.5 The Proponent's ability to identify and		
implement the City's requirements		
1.1.6 The Proponent's ability to complete projects on		
time and within budget		
1.1.7 The Proponent's knowledge of the City's		
requirements and procedures		
1.1.8 The Proponent's ability to perform Work at		
night and off-road (easements, parks, limited		
access areas, such as environmentally		
sensitive areas, including steep ravines)		
Points will be awarded based on how similar the projects are to this Contract and by how the above qualifications are demonstrated for each project.		
The City reserves the right to investigate and contact previous clients whose information has been provided by the Proponent.		
1.2 Terminated / Uncompleted Projects		
List descriptions of all your contracts which have been terminated prior to their completion including the circumstances surrounding the termination. Provide the name and telephone number of your client's representatives for such contracts.		
1.3 Corporate History		
List, if any, all previous corporate names and former legal alliances or partnerships / holding companies / subsidiaries, in which your company was involved in the past five years.		
If none, indicate that there have been no changes in the corporate name or other information listed above.		
2. Staff Experience in the Type of Work		15
2.1 Team Members		
Identify each key team member to be assigned to this Project, including any sub-contracted staff being proposed,		

Evaluation Criteria	Minimum Score	Maximum Score
	Required	Attainable
all senior inspection operators and crew leaders. Describe the team members' functions and provide a <i>curriculum vitae</i> that outline their relative experience.	•	
Include in the <i>curriculum vitae</i> all zoom camera, PACP and MACP experience for each team member, including conducting inspections off-road.		
Include all relevant training and certifications for those staff members listed, including but not limited to: PACP certification, confined space training, and traffic control,		
All team members and any subcontractors listed in this section should directly relate to the organizational chart requested in section 3.1 Organization of Work.		
Marks on this section will be awarded based on relevant experience, knowledge and qualifications demonstrated by the team and individual members.		
3. Organization of Work and Customer Service		
3.1 Organization of Work		15
Provide an overall organization chart for the performance of the Work on this Contract. Include on the chart tasks and key staff names and their roles and responsibilities. Clearly identify the roles proposed for the proposed key staff person.		
Include on the organization chart how each task for each project will be organized (for example):		
 Identification of work scope Liaison with the City Planning of inspections Production and delivery of inspection reports, videos and databases 		
Provide short descriptions on tasks where more information is required or the task has sub-components.		
Where the Proponent's team includes sub-contractors,		

Evaluation Criteria	Minimum Score Required	Maximum Score Attainable
identify where the sub-contractors fit into the organization chart. Fully describe the role proposed for sub-contractors.		
Describe how the Proponent's firm intends to perform the project. Where outside organizations or staff will be part of the Proponent's team for this Contract, identify these outside organizations and their key staff including their roles.		
Please organize this information so it can be easily referenced and related to the information provided in evaluation category 2.1 – Team Members.		
Points will be awarded based on the Proponent's project management abilities for this Contract including but not limited to: knowledge of required processes, adequate resource allocation, communication channels, scheduling, quality assurance / quality control of deliverables, and reporting.		
3.2 Customer Service		
Submit a description of the Proponent firm's course of action pertaining to concerns and complaints that may originate from residents, businesses and other parties affected by the Work.		
Provide a sample monthly report used to communicate progress and other issues with the City Project Manager or designate.		
Describe how your firm could respond to emergency/urgent inspection requests from the City if and when they may arise during or after normal working hours.		
4. Inspection Equipment to be Used	15	20
4.1 Inspection Equipment and Deliverables		
List and provide a detailed description and quantities of all inspection equipment (that is readily available for this Contract) to be used in performing zoom camera		

Evaluation Criteria	Minimum Score Required	Maximum Score Attainable									
inspections of manholes and sewers, including but not limited to inspection trucks, zoom camera, manhole inspection camera, lighting, GPS, off-road equipment (such as ATV or other means of transporting inspection equipment).											
Explain in detail how depth measurements for manholes and sewer inverts will be obtained on this Contract.											
Submit the following samples for review:											
4.1.1 a sample zoom camera inspection video utilizing PACP methodologies											
4.1.2 a sample detailed manhole inspection video utilizing MACP Level 2 methodologies (or customized MACP inspection including component defect coding)											
4.1.3 a sample PACP and sample MACP inspection database in Microsoft Access											
Benchmark	80										
Maximum Score		100									

2.4. Optional Interviews

- 2.4.1. Prior to Step 2, the City, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to conduct interviews with Proponents. The interviews will be held for the sole purpose of which will be to verify the scores which the Evaluation Team has applied to those Proponents being interviewed. The interviewers will ask questions relating to the criteria set out in Step 1, the RFP Documents, and the Proponent's Proposal. Proponents are not permitted to present any information not previously included in their Proposal.
- **2.4.2.** The Proponent's project leader and key members of the project team, as named in the Proposal submission must be in attendance at the interview. Proponents shall keep the number of presenters to the interview to no more than three people.
- **2.4.3.** No scoring will be given directly to the interview. The Evaluation Team will consider its prior scoring of the Proposals and adjust any, all, or none of the criteria up or down as the Evaluation Team agrees in consensus.

2.4.4. Any interviewed Proponent falling below the Benchmark will not move on to Step 2. All interviewed Proponents whose scores remain at or greater than the Benchmark will move on to Step 2.

3.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS STEP 2 – COST PROPOSALS

3.1. General

- 3.1.1. The Cost Proposal shall be evaluated in Step 2, in conjunction with the Technical Proposal. The Cost Proposal shall be submitted in a separate sealed package labeled "Step 2 Cost Proposal" and shall include any Cost Proposal Summary or additional costing information. Failure to submit the Cost Proposal in a separate sealed package may cause your Proposal to be disqualified.
- 3.1.2. Proponents shall submit two complete copies of the Cost Proposal (one originally signed document, and one identical photocopy). The City's Form of Proposal Cost Proposal (Step 2) (purple pages) must be completed in full and be included in the front of the Cost Proposal submission.
- **3.1.3.** The Form of Proposal Cost Proposal (Step 2) (purple pages) shall include all costs to complete the Project including any provisional costs.

3.2. Step 2 – Evaluation of Cost Proposals

- **3.2.1.** Only those Proponents who have met or exceeded the Benchmark in Step 1, (Table 1 Criteria for the Evaluation of Proposals) will proceed to Step 2.
- 3.2.2. All Proposals succeeding through Step 1 and receiving an evaluation score, as adjusted after the interview (if at all) at or greater than the Benchmark, will have their Form of Proposal Cost Proposal (Step 2) package marked "Step 2 Cost Proposal" opened and evaluated during Step 2.
- **3.2.3.** The compliant Proposal with the lowest Total Contract Price will be recommended for the award of the Contract.

To: Procurement Manager City of Hamilton Standard Life Building 9th Floor, Suite 900 120 King Street West Hamilton L8P 4V2 (the "City")

Contract Number: C11-39-15

Zoom Camera Inspection of Manholes and Sewers

□ partnership□ sole proprietorship	nent (check one): nere incorporated:
Registered business name	of Proponent (if applicable):
Proponent, whether or not	ves the right to verify the business name and structure of the this section is completed, to ensure that the Proponent is an Proponent is not an existing legal entity, the Proposal will be
Legal Name of Proponent:	
	(this name must exactly match the name on all documentation required of the Successful Proponent, e.g.; insurance certificate, WSIB certificate)
Business Address:	(include street, city, province and postal code)
	(include street, city, province and postar code)
Head Office Address:	
	(if different than above, include street, city, province and postal code)
Telephone Number:	Fax Number:
Email Address:	Date:

- **1.** The undersigned Proponent, having carefully examined the RFP Documents, hereby proposes and offers:
 - (a) to render all Services and provide all things necessary to perform same;
 - (b) to furnish all labour, service, Goods, materials, equipment and all incidentals:
 - (c) to pay all applicable Value Added Taxes and all other charges as specified; and
 - (d) to fully, properly, diligently and in good faith undertake, perform and complete all of the Proponent's (and upon any award of the Contract those of the Successful Proponent) duties, obligations and responsibilities under the Contract Documents,

in full accordance with the Contract Documents.

Receipt of the RFP Documents from the City is hereby acknowledged.

The Total Contract Price is submitted in a separate package marked "STEP 2" and is set out in the Form of Proposal [see Form of Proposal – Cost Proposal (Step 2)]. The Total Contract Price is in Canadian dollars and excludes Value Added Taxes. Value Added Taxes payable (as defined in the RFP Document) are for the account of the City and are in addition to the above Total Contract Price.

2. Addenda

I/We have made any necessary inquiries with respect to Addenda issued by the City and have ensured that we have received, examined and provided for all Addenda to the Request for Proposal in this Proposal.

NOTE: Any Addenda issued are posted on the following website: biddingo.com/hamilton

3. Commencement and Completion

If awarded the Contract, I/we, the Proponent, agrees to commence and complete work as per the Contract documents. I/We undertake that

- I/we will provide all necessary documents required as set forth prior to the commencement of this project;
- Completion of the Project will be achieved within the time allowed for completion as prescribed in the Terms of Reference.

4. Contract

It is understood and agreed by me/us that a binding Contract shall come into being upon acceptance of this Proposal by the City. The subsequent execution of any agreement or contract for works, if any, is a formality and not a condition precedent

to the existence of a binding Contract. The *Contract Documents* for this RFP shall constitute the Contract, including any Addenda issued, subject to such modifications as may be agreed to in writing between the parties.

5. <u>Execution</u>

If this Proposal is accepted by the City and the City is proceeding with the internal approvals for the award of the Contract, then I/we shall provide required proof of insurance and all other required submittals within ten Business days of notification from the City.

6. Additional Work

I/We also agree that if this Proposal is accepted, I/we shall execute whatever additional or extra work that may be required, in accordance with the RFP Documents.

7. <u>Time Open for Acceptance</u>

This offer is irrevocable and is to continue open to acceptance by the City for a period of <u>90 calendar days</u> after the date and time set for closing (submission) of Proposals. The City may at any time within the above <u>90 calendar day</u> period accept this Proposal whether or not any other Proposal has previously been accepted, upon notice of acceptance in writing to me/us personally delivered or mailed to me/us by ordinary prepaid mail to the address set forth on the Form of Proposal page of this Request for Proposals and any notice so mailed shall be deemed to have been received on the date of mailing thereof and any notice so delivered shall be deemed to have been received on the date the notice is so delivered.

8. Electronic Funds Transfer

I/We acknowledge and agree to provide the City with the information required for the City to make payment by EFT.

9. Occupational Health and Safety

I/We understand and agree that the Work must be conducted in a safe manner. Accordingly, I/we confirm that I/we and all Sub-Consultants used on the Work for the City of Hamilton will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and by-laws of Canada, the Province of Ontario and the City of Hamilton, including but not limited to the Occupational Health and Safety Act, and all applicable regulations thereunder. Further, without limiting any of the foregoing, I/we confirm that I/we have both a written occupational health and safety policy and program to implement that policy, and that all of our employees, Sub-Consultant and any other

persons performing the Work are appropriately trained, licenced and certified, as required to perform the Work.

10. No Collusion / Conflict of Interest

I/We hereby declare that no person, firm or corporation other than me/us has any interest in this Proposal or in the proposed Contract(s) for which this Proposal is made. I/We further declare that this Proposal is made without any connection to, comparison of figures, arrangements with or knowledge of, any other corporation, firm or persons making a Proposal for the same work and is in all respects fair and without fraud or collusion.

I/We confirm that we have complied with section 23 of the Instructions to Proponents regarding affiliates and corporations which are not at arm's length.

I/We declare that no member of the City of Hamilton, and no officer, employee or agent of the City of Hamilton has or will have an interest indirectly or directly as a contracting party, partner, shareholder, surety or otherwise in the performance of the Contract(s), or in the supply, work or business to which they relate or in any portion of the profits thereof, or in any of the monies to be derived there from.

11. Interpretation

I/We confirm that I/we have received no oral communication, representation, information, instruction or advice (collectively referred to as "representation") from any officer, employee, agent, or any other person acting on the behalf of or at the direction of the City which in any way amends or modifies the content of this Request for Proposals, any Addenda thereto, or any performance of Services, works, obligations or responsibilities or the exercise of any rights thereunder or with respect thereto. I/We specifically release and waive any right and claim I/we may have to a claim for negligence, misrepresentation, misstatement or otherwise for any oral communication or representation whatsoever. I/We represent that I/we have not been induced by any oral communication or representation whatsoever to submit this offer and acknowledge that the City is relying on the representations and waiver made by us herein. I/We further acknowledge that I/we have carefully reviewed, understand and agree to the communication provisions of the Instructions to Proponents.

I/We acknowledge and agree that I/we have not assumed that any information concerning our operations, business or personnel or any other information required to be provided by me/us when submitting our Proposal is known to the City, regardless of whether such information may be actually previously known to the City or not. Further, I/we acknowledge and agree that all information to be provided by me/us is to be complete and full and in such detail as required.

12. Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005

I/We confirm that I/we and all Sub-Contractors used on the Work for the City of Hamilton will comply with all applicable accessibility laws, regulations and bylaws of Canada, the Province of Ontario and the City of Hamilton, including but not limited to the Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001 (ODA), the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA), Ontario Regulation 429/07 (Accessibility Standards for Customer Service) and Ontario Regulation 191/11 (Integrated Accessibility Standards), throughout the term of the Contract. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, I/we shall provide to the City, prior to commencing Work, a Statement of Acknowledgement that I/we have read and understand the City's AODA Customer Service Standard Handbook (the "Handbook"), that I/we have provided the training required by the Handbook, and that I/we will comply with the requirements of the Handbook and applicable accessibility laws, regulations and by-laws. See City of Hamilton's AODA Customer Service Standard Handbook

hamilton.ca/government-information/accessibility-services/accessibility-standards

13. Compliance with the City of Hamilton By-laws

I/We declare that I/we are in compliance with all municipal by-laws as they pertain to the City of Hamilton in respect of the operation of my/our business and in respect of the Work described in the Request for Proposals. I/We understand and agree that if this statement is untrue or incorrect, the City of Hamilton shall be entitled at its sole discretion to reject this Proposal, or if such untruth or incorrectness comes to light after this Proposal is accepted, to terminate or refuse to enter into, as applicable, any Contract and to pursue any other legal recourse the City deems appropriate, and that such untruth or incorrectness shall be a default under the Contract.

14. <u>Procurement Policy</u>

In submitting a Proposal in response to the RFP, I/we agree and acknowledge that I/we have read and will be bound by the terms and conditions of the City's Procurement Policy. I/We understand that the City's Procurement Policy can be viewed on the City's website at hamilton.ca/buying-selling-city/bids-tenders/procurement-policy-by-law.

(Printed Name of Officer)	
(Fillited Name of Officer)	
(Original Signature)	

I/ We have the authority to bind the Proponent.

FORM OF PROPOSAL - COST PROPOSAL - (STEP 2)

Contr	act Number: C11-3	39-15
Zoom	Camera Inspection	n of Manholes and Sewers
Total	Contract Price	\$(in figures)
The T	otal Contract Price:	
*	Does not inclu Is in Canadia	
Propo	sal Submitted By:	(Legal Name of Proponent)
of Qu Sched made prices	antities and Prices lule of Quantities a	that the Total Contract Price is compiled from the Schedules included in this Form of Proposal. The quantities in the are approximate. I/We agree that the final valuation will be antities measured during and on completion of the Work at the Quantities.
per:	(Printed Name of Office	er)
	(Original Signature)	
	I / We have the au	thority to bind the Proponent.

FORM OF PROPOSAL - COST PROPOSAL - (STEP 2)

- Schedule of Quantities and Prices

Item No.	Spec. No.	Description	Unit of Measure	Estimated Quantity (Term One)	Unit Price	Extended Price				
		ZOOM CAMERA AND MANHOLE INSPE	ECTION SE	RVICES						
1	SP 1	On road and within 5 metres from road edge	each	7,200	\$	\$				
2	SP 2	Off-road between 5 metres and 15 metres of road edge	each	360	\$	\$				
3	SP 3	Off-road over 15 metres from road edge	each	h 300 \$ \$						
		OTHER								
4	SP 4	GPS locate of manholes	each	2,600	\$	\$				
5	SP 5	Inspections where manhole entry is required	each	200	\$	\$				
6	SP 6	Locating Manhole Abandonment	each	400	\$	\$				
7	SP 7	Inspection Abandonment	each	400	\$	\$				
			-	Total Cont	ract Price	\$				

C11-39-15
Zoom Camera Inspection of Manholes and Sewers

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Successful Proponent shall:

- be capable of providing the deliverables, such as, but not limited to: data, pictures, videos, and reports as outlined in this RFP.
- supply all equipment, labour, materials, transportation, reports, and data exchange services necessary to complete surveys and prepare reports as specified in this RFP.

The major deliverables are a monthly maintenance needs report and a relational database containing all existing and new data in a format compatible with the City's existing Maintenance Management system (Hansen).

1. SCOPE OF WORK

Data collection for the entire sanitary, storm and combined sewer systems is required to assist in the formulation of a prioritized maintenance-management program for all sewers and manholes.

The zoom camera inspections of manholes and sewers are designed to provide the City with a comprehensive set of data to assist in the development of a Citywide sewer rehabilitation and maintenance plan.

This project will assist the City in updating and validating a matrix of the sewer pipe and manhole data and conditions utilizing a customized format based on NASSCO PACP version 6.0.1 and MACP version 6.0.1 inspection guidelines.

It involves the use of truck-mounted and off-road zoom video inspection technology and GPS to update and compile sewer inspection data for all manholes and sewer segments within the City.

There are approximately 43,750 municipally owned manholes within the City required to be accessed over a five year period between the months of April and December of each year, dependent on weather and temperature conditions.

This includes, but is not limited to:

- approximately 40,150 manholes located within the City's right-of-way and 5 metres of the traveled portion of road, and
- approximately 3,600 manholes located off the City's right-of-way requiring offroad travel and setup

There are over 47,000 sewer segments averaging 70.0 metres in length from manhole to manhole.

2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK

The zoom camera must be lowered into each manhole allowing the recording of the structural and operational condition of the sewer pipes and manholes. The zoom camera will be remotely positioned to view and inspect all sewer pipes entering or exiting each manhole.

The manholes will be inspected by either a remote or internal method:

- i) Remote manhole inspections require the use of the zoom camera, located at the surface and immediately below the chimney, to identify and record defects.
- ii) Internal manhole inspections require the use of a wide angle lens camera, lowered from the surface to the manhole base, to identify and record defects.

The zoom camera system must permit the viewing of the condition of the manholes and the sewer pipes without person-entry.

Should special situations require person-entry, all confined space entry procedures required by the Occupational Health and Safety Act shall be strictly adhered to.

Work orders will be generated by the City and will be based upon existing sewer inventory information which indicates the type of sewer, diameter of pipe, direction of flows and existing manhole locations and Hansen identification numbers.

3. SCHEDULE AND LOCATION OF WORK

The Successful Proponent will be required to segregate the Work into eight separate areas:

- Upper Stoney Creek
- Lower Stoney Creek
- Upper Hamilton
- Lower Hamilton

- Glanbrook
- Dundas
- Flamborough
- Ancaster

The schedule of Work shall be prepared by the Successful Proponent based on the sequential inspection of all eight areas.

The schedule of Work must be approved by the Project Manager prior to commencement of Work.

The schedule will be based on single shift operations.

It is expected that Work will be conducted during standard operating hours except when requested and authorized by the Project Manager otherwise.

The Project Manager will discuss Work progress and data collection schedules with the Successful Proponent prior to commencing Work.

Any significant problems which could delay the completion date of the scheduled Work shall be reported to the Project Manager in a timely manner.

The Work to be performed is typically of a seasonal nature and as such the City has limited the period of data collection from **April 1 to December 15** of each calendar year. However, at the mutual consent of the Project Manager and the Successful Proponent, the data collection period may be gathered year-round provided the Successful Proponent can obtain and submit high quality inspection results during cold temperatures and inclement weather.

It shall be at the sole discretion of the Project Manager that the Successful Proponent may collect field data from December 15 through to April 1 (off season) and allow inspections to proceed based on public safety, traffic protection and inspection quality. Should the Successful Proponent choose to collect data from December 15 to April 1, there will be no additional payment or adjustment for any delay to the Successful Proponent caused by inclement weather or heavy snow fall or ice during off season. Any additional costs incurred by the Successful Proponent will be considered to be included in the Unit Prices Bid for the Work and no additional compensation will be allowed.

The Successful Proponent shall have one complete inspection crew available during the term of the Contract and/or be able to re-direct a complete inspection crew to respond to occasional same Business Day calls and occasional night shift Work at the Project Manager's request.

4. QUALIFICATIONS / EXPERIENCE

The Successful Proponent's project lead responsible for the Project, and the senior technician assigned to the data gathering, must have related experience in manhole and sewer inspections using a zoom camera.

The technicians responsible for the data preparation must have experience in this field.

Please note that key personnel proposed for the Project shall not be removed or replaced without obtaining the City's written consent at least 30 days in advance. If any named key personnel are to be replaced for any reason, the Successful Proponent shall promptly assign an acceptable, equally qualified replacement. Failure to do so may result in the termination of the Contract. The City shall have the right to interview and approve any replacement of key personnel.

5. (ZOOM CAMERA) MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

The zoom camera equipment, computer, video recording equipment and ancillary supplies necessary to complete zoom camera inspections must be transported in a mobile light duty vehicle. This vehicle shall be of an appropriate size and weight to allow for the inspection of manholes located on City streets within close proximity. Additionally, the Successful Proponent shall make further provisions to perform off-road inspections in, but not limited to, recreational trails, sidewalks, and green spaces.

All inspections performed off-road using mobile and/or portable set-ups must be of the same video quality as those performed from the truck mounted system.

5.1 Zoom Camera

The inspection and evaluation of the sewer systems must be performed using a waterproof, pan and tilt colour camera, capable of entering into a minimum manhole cover size of 300 millimetres (12 inches). The zoom camera must be equipped with a remote controlled and integrated lighting system capable of providing a clear image of the interior of the sewer pipe for a distance varying between 15m and 30 metres (50 - 100 feet) for small diameter pipe such as 200 millimetrea to 250 millimetres (8 -10 inches), and 30 metres to 100 metres (100 – 300 feet) in larger diameter pipe. Controlled from inside the mobile unit, the numerous individual adjustable light sources must be compatible with the lens angle and dispersed in a manner such that shadows are eliminated and "hot spots" are illuminated.

The camera shall be equipped with an optic telephoto lens with sufficient magnification that the farthest image is not degraded by the effects of pixelization. The camera will be capable of focusing in on objects to a minimum of 150 millimetres (6 inches) from the camera lens. The camera pan and tilt feature shall be capable of inspecting 360 degrees of a pipe, manhole or junction (pipe circumference), for pipes from 200 millimetres (8 inches) to 2000 millimetres (78 inches) diameter, without raising or lowering the boom.

The camera must be detachable from the mobile unit for inspection of difficult locations using a tripod. The equipment must be capable of lowering the camera to a depth of at least 12 metres (39 feet) inside the manhole.

5.2 Wide Angle Lens Manhole Inspection Camera

For detailed manhole inspections required under this Contract, the inspection and evaluation of the sewer manholes must be performed using a waterproof, wide angle lens, colour camera capable of entering into a minimum manhole cover size of 300 millimetres (12 inches). The camera must be equipped with a compatible remote controlled, integrated lighting system capable of clearly illuminating the interior of a manhole.

6. INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Pre and Post Inspection

Prior to the initiation of the sewer and/or manhole inspections and at the conclusion of the inspection, the Successful Proponent shall:

- locate manhole
- establish proper pedestrian and traffic protection controls
- test the atmosphere for Lower Explosive Limits (LEL) of the confined space before opening manhole access cover
- perform confined space entry as required to prepare manhole for inspection and restore the manhole to original conditions at the conclusion of the inspection
- Obtain GPS coordinates where required
- re-seat manhole cover and clean the site at the conclusion of the inspection

6.2 Zoom Camera Sewer Inspection

The camera shall be lowered into the manhole, and must be capable of descending to a depth of 10 metres – 12 metres (33 – 39 feet) inside the manhole. The camera must remain stable at any extended position to ensure a clear and stable video image is produced.

The camera shall be lowered into the manhole and each sewer segment entering or exiting from the manhole shall be inspected sequentially. The sewer inspection videos must include a header screen that shall be clearly displayed for a minimum of 5 seconds at the beginning of all video inspection recordings. Inspection of a sewer pipe shall not proceed while the header information screen is being displayed. For each sewer pipe, the mandatory PACP header fields to be completed are: 1, 1a, 10, 10a, 12, 13, 16, 17, 21, 23, 24, 25, 26, 39. These fields are defined in the Pipeline Assessment Certification Program Version 6.0.1. Only the applicable field of 13 or 17 should be completed, based on whether the current set-up is on the upstream or downstream MH for the sewer segment. This is to be a measured depth from the MH rim to the invert of the sewer being inspected.

The camera shall inspect the entire circumference of the sewer to manhole connection. The rest of the sewer must then be inspected to the maximum distance possible given the constraints of the diameter and material of the pipe, pipe alignment and service conditions. For each structural and service anomaly detected, the operator shall precisely focus on the defect and record a steady image for a period of 5 to 10 seconds. All defects identified and captured on video shall also be recorded in the data fields and format consistent with PACP 6.0.1.

6.3 Internal Manhole Inspection

Use the appropriate data collection software to capture and record information pertaining to the manhole in the provided format below, which is essentially a Modified Level 1 MACP 6.0.1 Inspection with the addition of Manhole Component Defects. The use of the identified data fields shall be in a format consistent with MACP.

The inspection will be conducted utilizing a wide angle lens inspection camera. The inspection will be initiated from the surface and will progress to the base of the manhole or to the full extent of the equipment. Prior to the camera entering the MH, a horizontal surface scan is to be recorded on the video to confirm location of the MH above grade.

The manhole inspection video must include a header screen that shall be clearly displayed for a minimum of 5 seconds at the beginning of all video inspection recordings. Inspection of the manhole shall not proceed while the information screen is being displayed. For each sewer manhole, the mandatory MACP header fields to be completed are: 1, 2, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16, 20, 25, 26, 27, 28, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37. These fields are defined in the Manhole Assessment Certification Program – Version 6.0.1.

Where software requires fields to be populated as part of MACP restrictions, yet are not listed above as required as part of this Contract, 'X's' may be entered as placeholder in this field.

The camera will be lowered down the manhole at a rate not exceeding 1 meter per 20 seconds. The camera will inspect the entire 360 degrees of manhole surface. For each structural and service anomaly detected, the operator will precisely focus on the defect and record a steady image for a period of 5 to 10 seconds. Each sewer connection into or out of the manhole will be inspected.

Once the camera has traversed the entire manhole depth it shall be raised to mid-height where the inspection of the manhole benching and trough will be completed

The required data fields to be populated in the MANHOLE COMPONENT OBSERVATION FORM are: 40, 41, 43, 44, 49, 50, 51, 54, 55, 57, 62, 64, 73, 78, 82, 83, 85. These fields are defined in the Manhole Assessment Certification Program - Version 6.0.1. Where software requires fields to be populated as part of MACP restrictions, yet are not listed above as required as part of this Contract, 'X's' may be entered in this field.

Given that all sewer connections will have a full zoom inspection completed on them, we **do not** require that the MANHOLE PIPE CONNECTION FORM be completed as part of the manhole inspection.

All manhole components must be inspected, captured on video and shall be recorded in the MANHOLE COMPONENT DEFECT FORM in a format consistent with MACP 6.0.1.

7. CODING AND DATABASE EXPORTING TO HANSEN

The City intends to import the data collected from this project into their Hansen Maintenance Management system. The collection of data must therefore satisfy the requirements provided herein.

Defect and Service Codes - The defect and service codes employed for this Contract will be as per NASSCO PACP and MACP version 6.0.1

Database Content - All data collected shall be provided in Microsoft Access 97 digital format or in a format readily importable into Microsoft Access97 without the necessity for any intermediate conversions, manipulations or formatting.

All required information for sewer pipe zoom inspections shall be delivered in a standard PACP 6.0.1. database format.

All required information for manhole inspections shall be delivered in a database format consistent with the forms in MACP 6.0.1. If during the term of the Contract a newer version of MACP is released with a customizable database it shall be adopted upon both the City's Project Manager and Successful Proponent's approval.

8. INTERIM REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The Successful Proponent shall provide monthly interim maintenance reports.

The City will perform rudimentary quality assurance / quality control reviews of the data to confirm that it has been provided in the required digital form and that the inspections have been completed in their entirety. The information contained in the interim report will be the basis for the issuance of monthly progress payments.

As data is collected in each area, it is anticipated that the Successful Proponent will be continuously identifying deficiencies that require immediate maintenance.

The Successful Proponent shall prepare and update an emergency repair report that lists the assets requiring emergency maintenance to restore the asset to a service level where no operational defects are present. This report will be updated by the Successful Proponent on a weekly basis and provided to the Project Manager in Excel format. The report will contain a running total, where each week's emergency repair requirements will be added to the previous week's report. The City will continuously review these reports and will initiate Work based on the recommendations provided.

Presented in Appendix A – Sample Weekly Priority Flushing / Cleaning Report is a sample emergency repair report to illustrate the minimum information to be provided in these reports.

Along with the submission of the emergency repair reports, any defects the Successful Proponent identifies that represent a loss of sewer service, for example, an existing sewer blockage, or will imminently result in a loss of sewer service, for example a sewer with 80% blockage, or any other observed conditions that place the health of the Successful Proponent's workers or the general public at risk, for example a broken manhole lid, must be reported to the Project Manager **immediately**.

9. SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

The Successful Proponent shall adhere to all applicable provincial and municipal regulations, standards, and operating procedures for this type of Work while employed by the City. This will include but not be limited to verification of the presence of any explosive or hazardous gases in the manhole before the manhole lid is removed, and continuously throughout the duration of the inspection.

10. GIMS - NETWORK HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE DATA

The Successful Proponent will be responsible for providing a sufficient number of laptop computers, and sufficient backup units, to carry out the Work the specified within the agreed upon schedule.

The computers should be capable of efficiently running the GIMS (Geographic Information System) schematic display software in the field. The Successful Proponent will be provided with a digital copy of the City's GIMS software and user license. The Successful Proponent will be expected to supply computer hardware and software meeting the following requirements to facilitate GIMS:

Hardware:

- Intel Core Processor dual core 2.9 GHZ minimum
- 40 GB free Hard Drive minimum
- 4 GB 1600mhz ddr3l memory minimum
- 8 x DVD +/-RW DVD tray load
- 15 inch (minimum 1024 x 786 resolution with 32 bit colour)

Software:

- Microsoft Windows 7 32/64 bit
- Microsoft Internet Explorer Version 10 (needed for installation and run time when working in Layout Window environment)

These computers will be the property of the Successful Proponent.

The Successful Proponent will be provided with a licensed copy of the City's infrastructure geographic information system software (GIMS) which is the source for all sewer record information.

The City will install a copy of the City's GIMS software on the Successful Proponent's computer(s) and provide the Successful Proponent with training on the use of the portions of the software applicable to this Contract. The Successful Proponent will be required to use the software in the manner intended by the City.

The Successful Proponent will be required to sign a proprietary software agreement with the City for the use of the software.

Upon completion of the Contract the City will uninstall the software from the Successful Proponent's computer(s).

11. TRAFFIC REQUIREMENTS

All Work must be conducted so as to minimize traffic disruptions on the City's road system.

(1) Supply all labour, signs, delineators, and set and maintain required detours at work sites, conforming to the latest edition of the manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

Single lane traffic shall be delineated and controlled by qualified flag persons, one at each end of the detour.

Cost to meet the requirements of this clause shall be included in the Unit Prices in the Schedule of Quantities and Prices for sewer cleaning and relining.

Cost to meet the requirements of this clause for major roadways shall be included in the Unit Prices bid in the Form of Proposal – Cost Proposal – (Step 2) – Schedule of Quantities and Price.

(2) Provisions for Access

The Contractor shall provide vehicular access at all times to all properties with existing access. Where blocking of access is unavoidable, the Contractor shall notify all residents affected and shall keep the period of inconvenience to a minimum.

(3) Pedestrian Traffic

The Contractor shall provide for safe pedestrian movement from all houses and businesses along the site at all times. Walkways shall not be obstructed at any time.

(4) Work on Major Arterials

No Work shall be performed on major arterial roads during Rush Hour Traffic (7:00 am - 9:00 am and 3:00 pm - 6:00 pm) without the written consent from the City's Project Manager. Refer to the Transportation Association of Canada Manual for road classifications and traffic volumes.

12. PUBLIC RELATIONS

The Successful Proponent must ensure that the personnel and equipment on site have a neat appearance and that all employees are polite and courteous under all circumstances.

The Successful Proponent must at all times keep the Work area in a clean and orderly condition so that there is minimum disturbance to the surrounding area.

13. LIABILITY

Any damage resulting from the Successful Proponent's negligence shall be repaired by the Successful Proponent at no extra cost to the City of Hamilton.

14. SPECIFICATIONS

SP 1. ZOOM CAMERA INSPECTION OF SEWERS AND INSPECTION OF MANHOLES – ON ROAD AND WITHIN 5 METRES OF ROAD EDGE

The Successful Proponent will provide all of the labour equipment and materials necessary to conduct a Zoom camera inspection of sewers and an internal inspection of manholes located on the paved roadway and up to a maximum distance of 5 metres measured from the closest edge of the paved roadway, both as described in this document. The scope of work will include, as a minimum:

- locate manholes in the field based on the City's most current sewer plan information
- Establish appropriate traffic control where necessary
- Verify atmosphere readings before opening manhole cover
- Remove manhole cover, measure and record depth of manhole from top of frame to deepest sewer invert.
- Locate the zoom camera and wide angle lens camera over the manhole opening and conduct an internal inspection of the manhole structure as described in 6.3 Internal Manhole Inspection.
- Conduct a zoom camera inspection of all sewers connected to the manhole recording as described in 6.2 Zoom Camera Sewer Inspection.
- Remove all equipment and debris from the area at the conclusion of the inspection and replace the manhole cover.
- Remove all traffic controls.

Where the manhole depth is greater than 12 metres (39 feet) the Successful Proponent is required to inspect all sewer segments connected to the manhole located within 12 metres (39 feet) from the road or ground surface utilizing zoom camera equipment.

SP 2. ZOOM CAMERA INSPECTION OF SEWERS AND INSPECTION OF MANHOLES – OFF-ROAD BETWEEN 5 METRES AND 15 METRES FROM ROAD EDGE

The Successful Proponent will provide all of the labour equipment and materials necessary to conduct a zoom camera inspection of sewers and an internal inspection of manholes off-road located between 5 metres and a maximum distance of 15m measured from the closest edge of the paved roadway, both as described in this document. The scope of Work will include, as a minimum:

- locate manholes in the field based on the City's most current sewer plan information
- Establish appropriate traffic control where necessary
- Verify atmosphere readings before opening manhole cover

- Remove manhole cover, measure and record depth of manhole from top of frame to deepest sewer invert.
- Locate the zoom camera and wide angle lens camera over the manhole opening and conduct an internal inspection of the manhole structure as described 6.3 Internal Manhole Inspection.
- Conduct a zoom camera inspection of all sewers connected to the manhole recording as described in 6.2 Zoom Camera Sewer Inspection.
- Remove all equipment and debris from the area at the conclusion of the inspection and replace the manhole cover.
- Remove all traffic controls.

Where the manhole depth is greater than 12 metres (39 feet) the Successful Proponent is required to inspect all sewer segments connected to the manhole located within 12 metres (39 feet) from the road or ground surface utilizing zoom camera equipment.

The Unit Price Bid for this item shall include all costs to inspect all sewer segments and manholes where manhole access is located beyond the traveled portion of road. Off-road locations such as paths, trails, easements, and fields, are some areas which have limited access for a conventional inspection set-up. This item shall cover all additional costs to supply all labour, material, equipment, set-up and breakdown of inspection apparatus, and transportation to and from each location necessary to complete a detailed manhole and sewer segment inspection.

SP 3. ZOOM CAMERA INSPECTION OF SEWERS AND INSPECTION OF MANHOLES – OFF-ROAD OVER 15 METRES FROM ROAD EDGE

The Successful Proponent will provide all of the labour equipment and materials necessary to conduct a zoom camera inspection of sewers and an internal inspection of manholes located off-road at a distance greater than 15 metres measured from the closed edge of the paved roadway, both as described in this document. The scope of work will include, as a minimum:

- locate manholes in the field based on the City's most current sewer plan information
- Establish appropriate traffic control where necessary
- verify atmosphere readings before opening manhole cover
- Remove manhole lid and record depth of manhole from top of frame to deepest sewer invert.
- Locate the zoom camera and wide angle lens camera over the manhole opening and conduct an internal inspection of the manhole structure recording all defects and their height relative to sewer invert.
- Conduct a zoom camera inspection of all sewers connected to the manhole recording all defects.

- Remove all equipment and debris from the area at the conclusion of the inspection and replace the manhole cover.
- Remove all traffic controls.

Where the manhole depth is greater than 12 metres (39 feet) the Successful Proponent is required to inspect all sewer segments connected to the manhole located within 12 metres (39 feet) from the road or ground surface utilizing zoom camera equipment.

The Unit Price Bid for this item shall include all costs to inspect all sewer segments and manholes where manhole access is located beyond the traveled portion of road. Off-road locations such as paths, trails, easements, fields, etc are some areas which have limited access for a conventional inspection set-up. This item shall cover all additional costs to supply all labour, material, equipment, set-up and breakdown of inspection apparatus, and transportation to and from each location necessary to complete a detailed manhole and sewer segment inspection.

SP 4. GPS LOCATE OF MANHOLES

The Successful Proponent shall collect GPS co-ordinates on all identified manholes that the City currently does not have GPS data on. It shall be field derived GPS co-ordinates for manholes accurate to 0.30 metres horizontally in the standard coordinate system, Modified Transverse Mercator, North American Datum 1983 (original). The GPS coordinates of the center of the manhole access cover may be used to input the field location of the manhole. The northing and easting coordinates will be precise to within sub-meter accuracy within 95% confidence.

The deliverable will be included as part of the MH inspection header and included in the database.

A digital list of the 13,290 manholes requiring GPS location will be made available to the Successful Proponent. The manholes currently without GPS data are generally located in newer subdivisions and off-road.

This item will apply for only those manholes identified as requiring GPS.

SP 5. INSPECTIONS WHERE MANHOLE ENTRY IS REQUIRED

The Successful Proponent is required to inspect all manholes where manhole geometry allows for vertical entry of camera equipment and ready inspection of sewers using zoom camera technology. The Successful Proponent is further required to inspect all sewers located within 12 meters from the road or ground surface.

Where manhole landings prohibit the completion of zoom camera inspection the Successful Proponent shall enter the manholes following all confined space guidelines and temporarily move the landings to complete the inspection. At the conclusion of the inspection the Successful Proponent will re-enter the manhole to restore the landings to their original position.

This additional Unit Price item will apply over the applicable item's Unit Price and will apply once per manhole where entry is required and regardless of the number of entries necessary to complete the inspection.

SP 6. LOCATING MANHOLE ABANDONMENT

Proponents shall provide a Unit Price, per manhole, for situations where the field crew cannot locate or inspect manholes for reasons including:

- a) manhole buried under asphalt or other hard surfaces
- b) manhole buried in soft ground were the depth of soil over the manhole cover is greater than 100 millimetres

Should the Successful Proponent choose to inspect during snow or ice covered conditions, additional cost items will not apply. In the event a manhole cover is buried under asphalt, earth, gravel, sod, or concrete, the Successful Proponent shall contact the Project Manager or designate to resolve the issue with City Operations staff and return for re-inspection at a later date.

This additional Unit Price item will apply over the applicable item's Unit Price.

In cases where the Successful Proponent must exercise this inspection, efforts to re-inspect the manhole shall not proceed without prior authorization by the Project Manager.

In cases where the Successful Proponent effectively locates and inspects manholes that meet the definition of b) above, the Successful Proponent may make a claim for this item provided that the Successful Proponent advises the Project Manager of such intention at the conclusion of each Work day.

This inspection does not apply to cases where the Successful Proponent is prevented from entering an area for inspection due to road construction activities, parked vehicles, film productions or other temporary conditions. In these situations the Successful Proponent will re-schedule the inspection after the road works have been completed.

SP 7. INSPECTION ABANDONMENT

Proponents shall Bid a Unit Price, per manhole, for inspections that cannot be completed as a result of unforeseen site conditions including, but not limited to

surcharged sewers, immovable landings and dangerous atmospheric conditions that cannot be made safe through forced ventilation. In cases where the Successful Proponent must exercise this item, re-attempting to inspect the sewer or manhole will not proceed without prior authorization by the Project Manager.

This item does not apply to cases where the Successful Proponent is prevented from entering an area for inspection due to road construction activities, parked vehicles, film productions or other temporary conditions. In these situations the Successful Proponent will re-schedule the inspection after the road works have been completed.

APPENDIX A – Sample Weekly Priority Flushing / Cleaning Report

																Reaming					F	lushing		
Iter	Compkey	Section	Pipe Section Number		Downstream MH	ı	Network Type	Street Name	Map Area	Pine	Pipe Mater ial	Pipe Dia.	Inspection Date	ISCG	PBG	Obstructio n	Roots	Calcite	Encr.	Debris Hard	Water Level	Debris		Debris Grease
	Week 1 [67]	2010 - NO	OV 6 to NOV 12																					
1	l		FK20B050 FK20B071	FK20B050	FK20B071	Down	S	ROCKHAVEN LAN	FK20	C	co	375	11/08/2010	1	2								10	
2			FK20B069 FK20B073	FK20B069	FK20B073	Down	S	MEAGHAN ST	FK20	С	co	1350	11/08/2010	1	2				5		5			
3	1		FK19A018 FL19A113	FK19A018	FL19A113	Up	F	KEEWAYDIN	FK19	С	PVC	250	11/08/2010	1	2	5					5			
4	ļ		FL19A058 FL19A060	FL19A058	FL19A060	Up	F	ROCKHAVEN LAN	FL19	С	co	250	11/08/2010	1	2									10
5	;		FN18B003 FN18B006	FN18B003	FN18B006	Down	S	ROSECLIFFE PL	FN18	С	co	300	11/09/2010	1	2								10	
6	;		FN18A002 FN18A004	FN18A002	FN18A004	Up	F	ROSECLIFFE	FN18	С	co	250	11/09/2010	1	2				5		5			
	Week 2 [26]	2010 - NO	OV 13 to NOV 19																					